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Foreword
We are very pleased to introduce the Annual Report for the year 2014/15, a year which, whilst very
challenging, has been an exciting one, not only for Clinical Commissioning Groups, but for the NHS as
a whole. NHS Warrington CCG has set robust plans for the coming financial year and the following 3
years and therefore there are no going concern issues.
Partnerships in Warrington are well established across health and social care providers and
commissioners. In the main, community health services are provided by Bridgewater Community NHS
Foundation Trust, mental health services by 5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and acute
services by Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. Warrington has a strong
organised local Third Sector and a large, engaged independent sector. NHS Warrington Clinical
Commissioning Group is coterminous with Warrington Borough Council and as a membership
organisation represents all of the GPs in Warrington.
The CCG continues to fulfil its statutory duties and strives to make real differences in the way that the
people of Warrington access health and social care, working collaboratively with local partners. It has
developed and strengthened its engagement processes, ensuring that our patients are at the heart of
everything we do. We are looking forward to 2015/16 which will see the introduction of the Better
Care Fund and the joint commissioning, with NHS England, of Primary Care services.
The purpose of this annual report is to communicate to our stakeholders how the organisation has
discharged its functions in the financial year 2014/15; including performance levels achieved and
risks faced.
The annual report includes a number of key statements supporting the financial year-end reporting
and the annual accounting requirements for the whole of the NHS and is subject to audit review.
These key statements are:





Members Practices introduction
Strategic report
Members report
Remuneration report

It is important to recognise that we could not have achieved all that we have without the loyalty and
dedication of all our partners and our support team who work together to ensure that our local
people and visitors receive the best health and care services possible which we know as ‘Excellence
for Warrington’. Once again, we would like to take this opportunity to thank everyone in our Clinical
Commissioning Group and partners for their commitment and hard work.

Dr Dan Bunstone
Clinical Chair
April 2015

Dr Andrew Davies
Clinical Chief Officer
April 2015
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Publication Arrangements
The Annual Report and a full copy of the Annual Accounts will be available on the CCG website from
Friday 29th May 2015.
Paper copies and summary versions of (and alternative formats) of the Annual Report are available
on request to members of the public free of charge through the Communications Team.
If you would like a paper copy please contact the Engagement, Experience and Communications
Team:
ccg.communications@warringtonccg.nhs.uk
Electronic copies will also available on the CCG’s website:
https://www.warringtonccg.nhs.uk/
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Introduction to the CCG
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) services people registered with 26 general
practices listed within the CCG area. This area is coterminous with Warrington Borough Council and
has a resident population of 208,000.
Our core purpose is to turn £244 million of resources into the best possible health outcomes for the
people of Warrington and our vision across the whole system is:

”to move from a reactive hospital based system of unplanned care to a preventative,
anticipatory, whole person approach to care. Services will be integrated across the health
and social care spectrum and redesigned with the patient and their carers’ at the centre,
with the aim that they are easy to navigate, of higher quality and promote equity,
accessibility and choice. Our aim is to enable people to be self-sufficient, providing necessary
care and support to people in their own homes and communities”.

This vision is underpinned by our values, which are:








Excellence
Valuing patients and partners
Accountability
Partnerships in everything
Honesty and integrity
Open and transparent
Courage

Our strategic objectives are:








Improve healthy life expectancy for all
Reduce inequalities
All commissioned services support delivery of the NHS Constitution
Continually improve quality of services to the population of Warrington
Achieve sustained financial balance
Maintain a highly effective and motivated whole system workforce
Ensure sound governance arrangements are in place

For 2014/15, NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group’s total resource limit for programme
expenditure was £244m. This is the amount of money the CCG received to commission health care
services for the needs of its population.
Our second year as a statutory organisation has not been without its challenges. Following interim
appointments in our first year of operation, we have now recruited permanently to key positions of

5

Clinical Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer. The appointment of our Chair to the position of
Clinical Chief Officer led to another change in the Governing Body. Our new Chair has now been
appointed; the role has been taken over by the elected Governing Body member representing the
Teaching Practice Federation. Despite these changes in leadership we have maintained the
achievement of our plans which is a testament to the strength of clinical leadership in the CCG and
the resilience of our management support team. We have also taken learning from this year to
implement more robust succession planning arrangements for both clinical and non-clinical members
of the CCG.
The enclosed report is a summation of the key issues the CCG has faced and delivered in 2014/15.
In addition to closing down the financial year 2014/15, the CCG has been working with its
membership and partners in developing its plans for 2015/16, developing integrated plans and a new
system wide architecture.

6

Member Practice Introduction
Warrington has 26 GP practices and the CCG has a culture of strong engagement with these member
practices. Warrington General Practitioners have established themselves into four Federations as an
effective way to communicate with each other and share issues with the CCG Governing Body and
vice versa.
Dr Dan Bunstone, Clinical Chair of the CCG said:

“I have recently been appointed as chair for NHS Warrington CCG after spending 4
years as a governing body member. It's a real honour to work within a CCG that is so
clearly focussed on quality and excellence. The quality of care we are able to deliver to
our patients forms the cornerstone of all the decisions we make. We have a hugely
motivated team within the CCG working closely with our healthcare partners to deliver
the sorts of services that the people of Warrington demand and deserve.
Our GP colleagues are working tirelessly within an incredibly challenging environment
of dwindling resources, increasing demand and a workforce crisis where recruiting GPs
is becoming ever more difficult. Despite these challenges, our local GPs have met the
challenges head on. They have embraced change, and reviewed their working patterns
(often at significant personal sacrifice) to try to better meet the needs of their
patients. A number of surgeries have adopted the "Productive Primary Care"
programme, which takes a root and branch look at the systems in place within
surgeries to try to ensure the most efficient use of time. Other surgeries have adopted
a telephone triage service in an attempt to maximise the number of face to face
appointments by remotely dealing with problems not requiring a standard GP clinic
appointment.
The CCG continues to face challenges, not least from the funding gap where
Warrington continues to receive one of the lowest resource allocations within the
north of England. Thankfully this gap is closing, but there is still a way to go. We are
working closely with our healthcare partners to ensure the best use of limited
resources, to continue to deliver excellence for Warrington.
I have asked each of our elected members to provide a short narrative which
represents the views of their member practices and these are included below. There
are some great things we have achieved together but also recognise things that need
to be done better.
What follows in this annual report is detail of the work that we have engaged in over
the past year from both a CCG and a member practice perspective. I would like to
commend it to you and look forward to seeing you at the annual general meeting.”
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Dr. Dan Bunstone in his role as the outgoing elected Governing Body member representing the
Teaching Practice federation which comprises of Brookfield Surgery, Folly Lane Medical Centre,
Lakeside Surgery, Penketh Health Centre and Stockton Health Medical Centre reports that:

“The Teaching Practice federation continues to be significantly involved both with the
CCG but also the more recently formed Community Interest Company (CIC) that has been
set up with the intention of making the best possible use of the successful Prime Ministers
Challenge Fund Bid. 4 of the 5 practices are currently leading on a Care Home Project
which has the potential to revolutionise the way we deliver healthcare for our care home
residents - switching from a reactive model of care delivery to a pro-active model. It's a
really exciting time and has allowed us to design a system that could really make a
difference. The commitment shown by those involved to maintain the momentum has
been immense.
All of our member practices have at least one GP with a clinical lead role within the CCG,
and include, Medicines Management Lead, Quality Lead, and End of Life Lead. I was the
Governing Body Member for our federation but am very pleased to report that Dr Laura
Mount will now be fulfilling this role. I'd like to wish Laura every success for the future.”

Dr Anthony Parkins, elected Governing Body member representing the Healthy Warrington
federation, which comprises of Eric Moore Partnership, Guardian Medical Centre, Helsby Street
Surgery, Latchford Medical Centre, Springfields Medical Centre and Westbrook Medical Centre,
reports that:

“NHS Warrington CCG has been given the task of achieving excellence for the people of
Warrington. They have to deliver this by commissioning and monitoring the services of
provider organisations, using innovation to transform the local health service, and do
this within the financial constraints imposed upon them.
During the last year, the CCG have continued in their efforts to reduce unnecessary
hospital admissions, in an attempt to reduce the huge pressure on acute services.
Examples of this include managing Deep Vein Thrombosis (DVT) in a different way;
helping practices with innovations to reduce over 75s admissions; extending access to
primary care out of hours and improving the quality of medical input into nursing
homes. A lot of this has come about via the evolution of Warrington Health Plus,
conceived as a result of the Prime Minister's Challenge Fund. Increasingly strong
relationships between Warrington Borough Council, Warrington CCG and provider
organisations are an essential framework through which real change can occur. It
continues to be vitally important that practice members feel part of this process and
that individuals have an influence on the direction of travel.”
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Dr Simon Redfearn, elected Governing Body member representing the Phoenix federation which
comprises of Birchwood Medical Centre, Fairfield Surgery, Fearnhead Cross Medical Centre,
Greenbank Surgery, Holes Lane Surgery, and Padgate Medical Centre reports that:

“The Practices in the Phoenix Federation have been working hard over the last 12
months to deliver excellence for their patients. Several of the clinicians in the
Federation are actively involved in committee or project work with the CCG and the
Federation has been divided into two clusters to make best use of the Prime
Minister’s Challenge Fund Monies.
We welcome the new primary care initiatives that have been introduced by the CCG
in the last 12 months including the Children’s Community Respiratory Support
Team, the suspected Deep Vein Thrombosis (DVT) pathway and an extra financial
resource from the CCG to support practices in managing their very elderly patients.
We are now starting to see some benefit from the Warrington Health Plus model
supported by the challenge fund including an extended access service, availability
of additional appointments during core hours and a new care co-ordination and
nursing home programme.
Although the CCG funding allocation for the forthcoming year has been uplifted it is
significantly below the fair share target. This is of concern to member practices
especially when Warrington is best performing ‘city’ in the region in respect to
economic performance and quality of life.
We look forward to a more outcome based commissioning process and working
with our main local providers to support both the delivery of high quality care and
the NHS constitutional standards recognising difficulties they have had over the
recent winter period.
Co-commissioning of primary care services with NHS England gives us the
opportunity to develop more integrated services with our colleagues at the local
hospital and in social care and is something we all welcome. We also welcome the
recognition the CCG has provided with regards to the role of primary care in
delivering its strategic objectives over the next 12 months with a focus on a referral
gateway, intermediate care, psychiatry and ambulatory care.”
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Dr Anita Malkhandi, elected Governing Body member representing the Warrington Alliance
Federation which comprises of Causeway Medical Centre, Cockhedge Medical Centre, CCA
Practices, Culcheth Medical Centre, Dallam Lane Medical Centre, Four Seasons Medical Centre,
Park View Surgery, Stretton Medical Centre and 280 Manchester Road Medical Centre reports that:

“Warrington Alliance has held monthly meetings after each protected learning
time event in order to facilitate maximum engagement with our members and
minimum disruption to our patients.
At each meeting we've had a presentation from key stakeholders and providers
across the health economy, for example our medicines management team, the
Cancer Clinical network, Public Health and support officers from the CCG to ensure
that we are aware of current and pertinent issues facing us in our commissioning
role. We have contributed to quality outcome audits for the CCG to assist with
contract monitoring with our providers, including clinical audit hospital discharge
summaries, review of re-admissions and outpatient attendances whilst an
inpatient. These audits are presented to the CCG Audit Committee.
The federation has strengthened our working relationship by examining areas of
quality in primary care for example significant event analysis, antibiotic prescribing
and how we manage care for our frail elderly. We have supported and engaged
with the process of the Prime Minister’s Challenge fund and our members all
attend their respective cluster groups. We have a productive and valuable practice
managers group that ensures we meet relevant targets and that information is
cascaded effectively throughout our individual practices.
We are pleased that our CCG has strong new leadership and look forward to
implementing many of the projects that we have suggested both through the CCG
and Warrington Health Plus e.g. paediatric phlebotomy in the community,
pharmacy minor ailments and children's care closer to home.”
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Strategic Report
This strategic report forms part of the NHS Warrington CCG’s Annual Report and its purpose, is to
present a fair review of the clinical commissioning group’s business and a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the organisation.
NHS Warrington CCG has established a robust regime of performance monitoring and management,
which includes Committees for Finance and Performance; Remuneration; Quality and Audit. There
are regular Provider, NHS England and Warrington Borough Council review and assurance meetings.
This combination is the assurance framework adopted by the CCG with regards to performance
management.
2014/15 once again has been financially and operationally challenging as the period of austerity
continues. However, against this background, the CCG is proud to say that it has delivered
“Excellence for Warrington” evidenced by continued delivery against the majority of national and
local targets whilst continuing to work towards long term financial stability for the Warrington health
economy.
The CCGs financial accounts, which form part of this submission, have been prepared in accordance
with the going concern principle as part of International Financial Reporting Standards. The
Governance Statement attached to this report, articulates how the CCG identifies, manages and
controls risks such that business continuity is assured.
The Warrington Health Economy has an ambitious whole system vision to achieve “Excellence for
Warrington” that will have:
“Self-sufficient communities enjoying improved health and wellbeing and better
life experiences, who and when they need them have access to high quality and
efficient services”.
In order to achieve this, we need to improve services and clinical outcomes for patients and their
carers, moving from a reactive hospital based system of unplanned care to a preventative,
anticipatory, whole person approach to their management and treatment.
Our vision, delivered via the large scale change programme, will enable patients, service users, carers
and their families to see:









a difference in service provision with holistic management of care;
models of care based on service user led pathways with no organisational boundaries and
systems that work;
more care delivered closer to home;
individuals supported to better manage their own conditions;
an increased use of technology;
more appropriate signposting to services, particularly in moments of crisis;
increased use of education by all agencies to help people; and
more use of existing support networks such as the family
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To deliver this vision, a two and five year strategy has been developed with partners that will achieve
transformation and performance improvement across the following programmes:







Long Term Conditions;
Urgent Care;
Mental Health;
End of Life;
Children and Young People; and
Primary Care

Healthcare Reform Process
Supported by our member practices, we developed our Quality, Improvement, Productivity, and
Prevention (QIPP) programme which totalled £3.7m in 2014/15. Of this sum, only £1.2m was
delivered and the balance was bridged by other underspends and the use of reserves/ non-recurrent
headroom.
We adopt a business process re-engineering approach underpinned by a programme approach that is
illustrated in the diagram below.

Warrington’s Health and Wellbeing Board
Warrington’s Health and Wellbeing Board was established in January 2011. The Board developed
Warrington’s Strategy for Wellbeing 2012-2015. This strategy was based on its refreshed Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment. The Wellbeing strategy pulls together an overarching outcome
framework so as to demonstrate Warrington’s commitment to prevention, collaboration and
integration, and ensure that local health and social care resources are targeted at areas of most need
to ensure maximum benefit. Warrington’s Health and Wellbeing Board is supported by Warrington’s
Health and Social Care Summit and the Integrated Commissioning Governance Board
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Health and Social Care Summit
The Health summit is supported by an agreed concordat which brings together behaviour and actions
across the whole system. The Health Summit:









acts as the Programme Board for the Integrated Whole System Transformation Programme
sets the strategic direction for programme delivery and will ensure that programmes fall in
line with the business context of all partners
ensures that the programme remains consistent with business plans and the external
environment
commits resources to a programme or project
is responsible for authorising the programme and project plans and for holding the respective
project delivery groups to account for delivery
holds partner organisations to account for facilitating progress and achievement of the
project objective and deliverables
manages the Integrated Whole System Transformation Programme by exception, directing
and authorising the projects at key stages
provides ad hoc direction to project delivery teams as required.

2014/15 saw the establishment of the three sub-groups of the Health Summit given the mandate to
accelerate opportunities for integration.
1. The system wide directors of finance meeting – continues to embed the notion of the
Warrington pound and seeks opportunities to use the £1.5 billion of public sector investment
in the town to drive out in efficiencies and avoid duplication;
2. The system wide information technology group – continues working towards the
interoperability of assessment and information systems across the economy ; and
3. The integrated operational group - continues to explore opportunities for integrated delivery
of services across NHS, Council, housing, preventative, voluntary and private sectors.
Integrated Commissioning Governance Board
This board oversees pooled budgets and is vital to governance of the Better Care Fund that
commenced on 1st April 2015. Its aim is to strengthen and increase shared financial decisions so as to
support prevention and integration to meet quality outcomes for the people of Warrington. This
forum has aligned the outcome framework and identified potential financial efficiencies for reinvestment in prevention and rehabilitation. This Board will oversee the Better Care Fund.
Transformational Change Board
The Transformational Change Board provides operational and clinical leadership and support to the
Delivery Groups, and reports into the Health Summit. The Board signs off implementation plans
(“making it happen”) and then assesses the impact of proposed changes to services or systems on
patient care policies, practices and staff resources. Members of the Transformational Change Board
are responsible for ensuring that planned changes are communicated widely across all stakeholders.
Clinicians are responsible for leading and promoting wider clinical engagement in the changes,
ensuring patient/user focus remains at the centre of planning and decision making.
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The Board oversees the performance of the Integrated Whole System Transformation Programme
and provides assurance to the Health Summit that project plans are robust (clinical and financial) and
delivering to time. The Board has a responsibility to identify and co-ordinate cross-cutting activities
(finance, Human Resources and communications for example). The Transformational Change Board
further facilitates shared learning across programme areas.

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
NHS Warrington CCG adheres to the rights and pledges to patient involvement enshrined in the NHS
Constitution and in particular is also guided by the additional duties that CCGs have a mandate to
deliver:



To involve people in the commissioning arrangements relating to the planning, provision and
delivery of NHS services (14Z2 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012)
The legal duty to consult local authority overview and scrutiny committees on substantial
developments or variations in the provision of services
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CCG Finance 2014/15
Financial Performance
Clinical Commissioning Groups have a statutory duty to spend within their allocated budget; referred
to as delivering operational financial balance. As at 31st March 2015, NHS Warrington Clinical
Commissioning Group achieved financial balance along with the other required financial duties and
has applied its resources effectively.
The reported financial position at 31st March 2015 is a £0.1m surplus in line with the agreed surplus
level agreed with NHS England.

Financial Resilience and Sustainability
NHS Warrington CCG has set robust plans for the coming financial year and the following 3 years and
therefore there are no going concern issues. Following the NHS Chief Executives 5 year forward view
planning guidance, the CCG has received an additional £8m of growth funding in the 2015/16
programme resource allocation to recognise the historic distance from target.
The CCG is working on developing a clear picture and plan for delivery of a sustainable provider
landscape across health, wellbeing and social care for Warrington. This vision for health in
Warrington was developed by stakeholders at the annual visioning event and is supported by senior
leaders in the health economy. As this plan for deliver develops further stakeholder engagement with
be developed. The Warrington Health Economy appointed a system transformation director post
during 2014/15 funded by the 5 key stakeholders.

Financial Targets
Clinical Commissioning Group’s accounts report performance against the financial performance
targets. As reported above, all financial duties have been achieved as demonstrated below:

Revenue Resource Limit – the CCG has a statutory duty to contain its revenue expenditure within the
notified revenue resource limit of £249.2m. This was achieved with an under spend of £0.1m (which
is in line with the agreed control total).

Revenue Resource Limit
The CCG's performance for the year ended 2014-15 is as follows:
Total Net Operating Costs for the Financial Year
Adjusted for prior period adjustments in respect of errors
Revenue Resource Limit
Under / (Over)spend Against Revenue Resource Limit (RRL)

2014-15
£000s
249,070
0
249,170
100
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Capital Resource Limit - the CCG has a statutory duty to contain its capital expenditure within the
notified capital resource limit of £0.1m. This was achieved (which is in line with the agreed control
total).
Capital Resource Limit
The CCG's performance for the year ended 2014-15 is as follows:
Total Net Capital Costs for the Financial Year
Adjusted for prior period adjustments in respect of errors
Capital Resource Limit
Under / (Over)spend Against Capital Resource Limit (CRL)

2014-15
£000s
119
0
120
1

Under/ (Over) Spend against Cash Limit - this financial target ensures that the CCG does not exceed
its approved level of cash available. This target was achieved, with the CCG maximising its cash use by
ending the financial year with a minimal cash balance of £19k (which was below the target set for
CCG’s of a £250k balance).

Under / (Over)spend against cash limit
Total Charge to Cash Limit
Cash Limit
Under / (Over)spend Against Cash Limit

2014-15
£000s
248,091
248,110
19

These accounts have been prepared under a Direction as issued by the NHS Commissioning Board
under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).

Financial Resources
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group received a resource allocation of £249.2m for the
2014/15 financial year: £244.1m for programme expenditure (healthcare) and £5.1m for running cost
expenditure (based on £25 per head using ONS population figures of 204,839).
It should be noted that the NHS Warrington CCG resource allocation for programme (healthcare)
expenditure is £18.2m below the target.
In 2014/15 NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group spent £244.8m on programme
expenditure (healthcare) for Warrington residents during 2013/14 and spent £4.3m on running costs.
This level of expenditure meant that the CCG did not achieve the initial planned surplus figure of
£1.2m but did achieve the revised surplus figure of £0.1m as agreed with the NHS Cheshire,
Warrington and Wirral Area Team. This movement in performance was agreed with NHS England at
month 6 (September 2014) of the 2014/15 financial year.
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Service Element
Programme - Healthcare Provision
Running Costs - Corporate
Total

2014/15
Resource
£000s
244,054
5,116
249,170

2014/15
Expenditure
£000s
244,768
4,302
249,070

Variance
£000s
-714
814
100

As demonstrated in the table above, NHS Warrington CCG utilised underspends against the 2014/15
running cost allowance to support additional programme (healthcare) expenditure. This is an
approach that is supported by NHS England and is confirmed in the ‘Everyone Counts: Planning for
patients 2014/15 to 2018/19’ guidance.
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group spent its resources as follows:

Secondary and Community Care services
Acute services
Mental Health services
Community services
Continuing Care services
Primary Care services (incl. Precribing)
Reablement
Corporate Running costs
Corporate Non Running costs
Planned Surplus
Total Expenditure 2014/15

2014/15 Budget
£000s
141,006
26,055
22,986
14,732
36,284
1,090
5,116
678
1,223
249,170

2014/15
Outturn
£000s
143,009
27,212
23,121
15,598
34,731
381
4,302
716
100
249,170

2014/15
Outturn
Variance
£000s
-2,003
-1,157
-135
-866
1,553
709
814
-38
1,123
0

Acute services
Mental Health services

Community services
Continuing Care services
Primary Care services (incl.
Precribing)
Reablement
Corporate Running costs

Corporate Non Running
costs
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Better payment practice code
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group aims to pay creditors in accordance with the
confederation of British Industry’s Prompt Payment Code and government accounting rules.
Performance against the better payment practice code can be summarised as follows:
Better Payment Practic Code - Measure of compliance

2014-15
Number

2014-15
£000s

Non NHS Payables
Total Non NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year
Total Non NHS Trade Invoices Paid within Target
Percentage of Non NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target

4,685
4,404
94.00%

33,055
30,521
92.33%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within Target
Percentage of Non NHS Trade Invoices Paid Within Target

2,343
2,244
95.77%

177,980
176,244
99.02%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due date or within 30 days of
receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Late Payment of Commercial Debts (interest) Act 1998
There were no payments arising from claims made by businesses under this legislation (2014/15,
£0), nor was any compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs (2014/15, £0).
Audit Fees
The Clinical Commissioning Group’s appointed external auditors for the audit of the 2014/15
accounts are Grant Thornton UK LLP.
Fees incurred for the audit of the 2014/15 accounts are £60,000 (excluding VAT).
Internal audit services were provided by Mersey Internal Audit Agency at a cost of £52,592 (excluding
VAT).
Running costs
As reported above the Clinical Commissioning Group operated within its £25 per head of population
allocation for running costs.
Exit Packages
NHS Warrington CCG agreed 2 exit packages during the 2014/15 financial year; exit costs are
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting standards and are in-line with agreed
contracts of employment.
The remuneration report includes the disclosure of exit payments made during 2014/15.
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Performance 2014/15
NHS Warrington CCG is committed to a process of continuous improvement and has worked with
partner agencies to achieve this. The CCG is monitored by NHS England to ensure compliance with
The NHS Outcomes Framework; that the NHS Constitutional Rights are met; the NHS Warrington
CCGs local priorities are achieved and that the CCG continues to ensure parity of esteem, remove
inequalities and ensure better care and outcomes for our population. Assurance meetings and
conversations are held regularly with NHS England. This enables a dialogue to agree whether the CCG
is delivering assurance, whether support is required or whether intervention required.
Domain

Description

2013/14
Q4

Q1

2014/15
Q2

Q3

1

Are patients receiving clinically
commissioned, high quality services?

Assured

Assured

Assured

Assured

2

Are patients and the public actively
engaged and involved?

Assured

Assured

Assured

Assured

3

Are CCG plans delivering better outcomes
for patients?

Assured with
support

Assured with
support

Assured with
support

Assured with
support

4

Does the CCG have robust governance
arrangements?

Assured

Assured

Assured

Assured

5

Are CCGs working in partnership with
others?

Assured

Assured

Assured

Assured

6

Does the CCG have strong and robust
leadership?

Assured

Assured

Assured

Assured

As required by NHS England, the CCG uses the NHS Standard Contract for all contracts for healthcare
services. The CCG performance monitors all of its providers of NHS Funded Healthcare in line with the
terms and conditions of the NHS Contract and applies all financial adjustments in relation to breaches
of the contract. Each provider is subject to regular reviews through Contract Review meetings and
Clinical Quality Focus groups. The CCGs performance and contracting team compiles formal reports
based on intelligence received from formal contract monitoring and from national evidence sources
to be presented and discussed to the finance and performance committee, the quality committee
and the governing body detailing







The performance summary for the CCG (this is a monthly summary of the key performance
indicators for the CCG)
A summary demonstrating whether patients are getting good quality care
Details of whether patient’s rights under the NHS Constitution are being met
A summary indicating whether health outcomes are improving for the Warrington population
Whether the CCG is performing within its financial allocation
Performance indicators from the local quality schedules within our contracts with our
providers

Performance reports are published as part of the Governing Body papers and can be found on the
CCG website.
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CCG Quality
Ensuring that our local population can access health services when they need to is paramount to the
Clinical Commissioning Group. Our commissioned services must always be safe and effective and
strive to improve the patient experience. We have strong partnership working with providers to
ensure that contractual obligations are being met and the correct metrics are in place when the
quality of care fails to meet the acquired standards.
The quality team is committed to ensuring that all providers of commissioned services deliver high
standards of care that are supplied by safe and competent practitioners. Investment in the team has
now enabled us to work with colleagues in the Local Authority to both strengthen and align the
systems and processes to ensure that the care standards for our most frail and vulnerable members
of the population are being monitored and when necessary, being improved upon. The appointment
to the team of a Practice Nurse to take forward the Primary Care agenda and a Deputy Chief Nurse to
take forward the continuity of care and workforce standards has helped to ensure that quality is
being delivered and improved upon.
Elderly Care Provision
NHS Warrington CCG has a number of contracts with care home providers delivering continuing
health care to residents. To ensure that the type of care being both commissioned and provided is
meeting the needs of residents, the Quality Improvement Manager (Care Homes) has undertaken
joint visits with Local Authority colleagues to review current arrangements and provide guidance and
support to care home staff in relation to nursing care. A key objective of the team’s review is to work
with managers and staff to raise awareness and ensure that care standards are both safe and
effective, to ensure that staff working in these areas of care are being informed and supported to
build on their skills and competencies and to ensure that care is driven by compassion and delivered
with respect and dignity. A further objective of the team is to ensure that all homes receive regular
reviews of their standards of nursing care in line with the recommendations highlighted in the
Winterbourne View Report.
Infection control
We continue to work in partnership with all our providers and have made progress in improving the
systems and processes of reporting and investigating the number of healthcare-acquired infections.
NHS Warrington CCG is eager to ensure that organisations both recognise and acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that high standards of infection control have been achieved. This will be
achieved through the provision of training, information and advice with infection prevention and
control teams across the Warrington area to share best practice and monitor and learn from
incidents.
Improving the patient experience - Friends and Family Test
Launched in April 2013, the national Friends and Family Test asks patients who have recently visited
the Accident and Emergency Department or had an overnight stay in their local hospital if they would
recommend their care. It aims to improve the hospital experience and raise standards of NHS care.
The test has now been introduced into primary care and with colleagues we are monitoring local
results and will be working alongside providers to improve scores when improvements are necessary.
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Failing Providers
NHS Warrington CCG has robust processes in place to ensure that should there be cause for concern
with a provider’s ability to meet the agreed standards of their contract, there are appropriate forums
in which providers and commissioners have the opportunity to raise concerns in an open, honest and
transparent way. Monthly meetings with our providers prioritise review of the required quality
schedules as well as the fiscal elements of the contract. Senior clinicians and management team
members from the providers attend meetings to discuss any issues and agree plans to rectify the
problem.
The CCG also holds a monthly Serious Untoward Incident (SUI) meeting where cases which may have
resulted in failure to meet the patient care standards required or resulted in harm to the patient will
call providers to account for their actions and request a detailed analysis of the incident to be carried
out and presented to the committee.
If the committee remain concerned by the provider’s failure to assure, they are again requested to
return to the meeting where further guarantees will be sought. The CCG has representation on the
Local Area Teams (LAT) monthly Quality Surveillance Group (QSG). Members of this group include;
Care Quality Commission (CQC), Monitor, Healthwatch and representation from The Liverpool
Deanery – Hospitals and Educational Supervisors. Commissioners are required to account for
problematic areas of care which have or may directly impact on the safety, effectiveness and impact
of the patient experience and commissioner’s report the actions that have been agreed between
commissioner and provider to address the situation. The sharing of quality intelligence with the
representation of national and local bodies offers an ideal forum for awareness raising and detailed
monitoring. Triangulation is achieved by escalating the concerns to the appropriate contract review
meeting where the levers of the contract will be considered in raising a contract query or invoking
the appropriate actions or financial adjustments. Dependent on the success of this process the
provider will be requested to attend a formal ‘Quality Risk Summit’ with their commissioners,
representation from the Local Area Team and national organisations such as the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) and Monitor where agreed action plans and trajectories are agreed to improve on
the service.
Care Homes Work
As a CCG we have recognised the importance of working with our care homes to ensure quality for
our patients. We have appointed a Care Homes Quality Manager to lead and implement this. Over
the past year our successes have included the Medicines Management Policy being reviewed and
updated. It has been rewritten with reference to National Institute for Clinical Health and Excellence
(NICE) guidance for developing a Medicines Management Policy in Care Homes, March 2014.
Documents and procedures have been updated according to current evidence and there is improved
reference to the Mental Capacity Act, safeguarding procedures, Deprivation of Liberty orders and
consent.
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Reporting requirements have been developed to provide the CCG with the assurance it requires but
also reduces duplication by sharing data between commissioners and other professionals working
with the homes, for example infection control. This information will go on to inform an integrated
dashboard reflecting all aspects of data collection from each home. Warrington Borough Council and
NHS Warrington CCG IT teams are currently working on a process to allow integration of databases.
The joint default process is now embedded but has not been called in to use so far
Pressure ulcers continue to be a challenge in nursing homes although numbers reported by the acute
trust on admission have decreased. A quality improvement initiative is planned for homes on the NHS
Framework for the contract renewal date in September 2015, to support the work to reduce the
incidence of pressure ulcers. This will also link with the local authority contract as in section 5 above
and will require reporting of care reviews and lessons learned on a quarterly basis
Engagement, Experience and Communications
NHS Warrington CCG is committed to carrying out meaningful engagement and putting patients at
the heart of every decision we make. Our aim is to make sure we are commissioning the best possible
health services for the people of Warrington.
The CCG has a dedicated Engagement, Experience and Communications team responsible for
delivering this across Warrington. The team consists of the Head of Engagement, Experience and
Communications, an Engagement Co-ordinator and a Communications Co-ordinator.
During 2014/15 we have facilitated a number of public events and meetings including; Patient
Participation Group (PPG) network meetings, Warrington Health Forum as well as other events at
different venues across the town. This helps to ensure the population as a whole are engaged with
the NHS. The team strives to make sure all voices, including the most vulnerable of the population,
are heard. We do this by undertaking specific engagement activities with various minority groups;
including but not limited to Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender (LGBT), Black and Minority Ethnic
communities (BME), older people, people with mental health problems and those with disabilities.
Stakeholders
Using a stakeholder mapping gap analysis the CCG has mapped its key public and Third Sector
stakeholders to ensure we understand their needs, the best ways to communicate and engage with
and to identify any gaps. This work has supported the CCG in delivering its Equality Delivery System
(EDS), by engaging with key stakeholders who represent the nine Equality Strands.
Consultation and Engagement
NHS Warrington CCG continually engage with its population to gain experiences and to inform new
service specifications, review of pathways and to understand needs, behaviours and aspirations.
In 2014/15 the CCG has engaged with the community around; a new transition pathway for
continuing care to continuing health care, including the development of new information packs, a
review of all primary care mental health services, a review of A&E attendance and why people choose
that option, and a formal consultation on our Commissioning Policies, the most significant outcome
of this being the introduction of three cycles of IVF being funded.
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Other examples include:

Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender (LGBT) Involvement
Regular meetings have taken place with the LGBT community for them to be able to share their
experiences of accessing healthcare. This has resulted in increased trust of health services by
the community and individual issues have been resolved. As a result an LGBT Patient Charter is
being developed to share with Commissioners and Providers on how the community expect to
be treated.

Engagement with People with Learning Disabilities
The Engagement, Experience and Communications Team have worked in partnership with
people with learning disabilities, through Warrington Speak Up, to ensure they are listened to
and they receive key health messages. A monthly Ladies Group is held focused on health and
wellbeing, with key messages around Annual Health Checks, the importance of dentist and
optician checks up, sexual health messages and health eating. As a result of this engagement
easy read appointment letters from GPs are being developed and working with Warrington
Health Plus easy read clinic information is being produced.

Warrington Health Forum
The CCG continues to develop its Health Forum with the involvement of our patient and public
stakeholders. The forum is a sub group from the quality committee and is used as the CCG strategic
engagement forum. The forum is made up of key public stakeholders, including individual patient and
carers and Third Sector organisations. The membership, and wider virtual membership, represents
groups including Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender (LGBT), Young Men’s Christian Association
(YMCA), Warrington Disability Partnership, Older Peoples Engagement Group, Homestart, Red Cross,
Wired Carers, Healthwatch and Warrington Ethnic Communities Association. Using the stakeholder
mapping that has been produced; we have targeted gaps in our membership to be involved.
Patient Participation Group (PPG) Network
The CCG has continued to develop its Patient Participation Group (PPG) Network to share best
practice across PPGs and offer support and advice to newly formed PPG. Membership of the network
has increased and the majority of PPGs now have a representative on the network. As a result of the
network generic PPG promotional materials have been produced to raise awareness and promote
attendance. A PPG Pack has been produced to share with new PPGs to support them in developing.
‘Third Sector Speed Dating’ events have taken place with the PPG network to highlight the benefits of
Third Sector organisations working with primary care, these have included groups and organisations
working with children and families, Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender (LGBT) communities, people
with mental health problems and disabilities. Evaluation of the event proved successful and these
will continue.
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Public Events
The Engagement, Experience and Communications Team organised an event for patients and the
public to ‘Get Engaged’ with local health and social care services. Around 100 people attended on the
day, which included various speakers, workshops and a marketplace. There were also attendees from
our statutory partners, these included Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust,
Bridgewater Community Healthcare NHS Trust, 5 Borough Partnership NHS Foundation Trust,
pharmacists, GPs, CCG Staff, Warrington Borough Council Staff, including the Public Health and
Outreach Team and Councillors. Feedback from the day was extremely positive and we these will be
held six monthly.
Social Media
NHS Warrington CCG uses various social media platforms in order to support communications and
actively engage with as many people as possible across the town. The CCG’s following on Twitter has
increased rapidly over the last 12 months and the account now has over 4200 followers. The use of
Facebook, twitter and the newly formed Instagram page have proven to be a really positive way of
engaging with the population and sharing information with previously hard to reach social groups.
Staff Engagement
As a CCG we aim to engage and communicate with our staff as effective as possible. As a whole team
we meet weekly to update on work, new reports and guidelines. A weekly staff e-bulletin is produced
to again update staff. A monthly staff development session is held; these are organised to both
deliver training and involve staff in the CCG work, visions and values.
Staff surveys have been undertaken on different topics including knowledge of children’s
safeguarding and performance management of staff. During 2014/15 the CCG undertook focused
consultation on the individual performance management and coaching processes for employed staff.
A survey to all staff encouraged them to reflect on current procedures, share their experiences,
feedback elements that they felt were beneficial to them and finally areas that they felt could be
improved. Feedback from staff was on 3 main themes; People, Process and Development. The
consultation results shaped the CCGs delivery plan for staff development for the year and a separate
working group was established by staff to produce one page individual performance dashboards that
directly linked each employees work to the vision, values and strategic objectives of the CCG.
We recognise that we need to improve our communication and engagement with staff so it is more
consistent. In the next year we will undertake consistent staff surveys so we can benchmark our
performance and ensure the team are listened to and their opinions are valued.
Clinical Engagement
As the CCG is a membership organisation is it vital we engage with our clinicians, not only our GP
Federation Chairs and Clinical Leads but all our primary care staff. A weekly clinical bulletin is
produced which is sent to primary care staff. This provides up to date information on guidelines,
clinical procedures and referral pathways, as well as Third Sector support.
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The CCG is responsible for the GPs bi-monthly Protected Learning Times (PLT). These PLT sessions are
used to update our GPs on clinical procedures, new National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
(NICE) guidelines etc. As a result of GP feedback the Royal College of GPs now facilitate these sessions
to ensure that they are educational and are as worthwhile as possible for the GPs. Evaluations from
the sessions have shown that GPs value these sessions and will change their clinical practice as a
result.
Primary Care Awards
To value all of our primary care staff we organise a yearly Primary Care Awards to celebrate and
highlight their excellent work. Nominations have been for GPs, reception staff, Practice Managers,
Business Managers and CCG support staff. Positive press coverage is produced from this in
highlighting best practices and more importantly it increases staff moral.
Conclusion
I certify that NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has complied with the statutory duties
laid down in the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).

Signed:

Dr Andrew Davies
Clinical Chief Officer
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Members Report
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning group was formally constituted on 1st April 2013 following
authorisation as a Wave 1 CCG with no conditions as part of the process led by NHS England. There
have been no changes during the financial year 2014/15.
Warrington has formed one Clinical Commissioning Group and each GP Practice in Warrington is a
member of the Clinical Commissioning Group.
NHS Warrington CCG Practices
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Birchwood
Brookfield
Causeway (Hood Manor Branch Surgery)
CCA Care Partnership (Culcheth, Chapelford and Appleton Practices)
Cockhedge
Culcheth Medical Centre
Dallam Lane
Eric Moore Partnership
Fairfield
Fearnhead (Longford Street Branch Surgery)
Folly Lane
Four Seasons
Greenbank
Guardian Street
Helsby Street
Holes Lane
Lakeside
Latchford
Manchester Road
Parkview
Padgate
Penketh
Springfields
Stockton Heath
Stretton
Westbrook

Further details of our GP member practices can also be found on our public facing website:
http://www.warringtonccg.nhs.uk/about-us/warrington_gp_practice_members.html
Our member practices work together across the town with each being part of one of four GP
federations as shown in the diagram below. Each of the member practices within each federation is
represented on the CCG governing body by an elected GP member. All GP federations also have an
appointed GP Chair that is separate to their CCG Governing Body representative.
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Copies of the Clinical Commissioning Groups Strategic Plan for 2014/15 are available on the public
facing website at http://www.warringtonccg.nhs.uk
The Governing Body are also responsible for preparing an Annual Governance Statement which sets
out how the Governing Body discharged its responsibilities. This Statement is provided within
Appendix 2 of this report. The Governing Body comprises:
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*GP Representing Teaching Practice Federation was vacant as at 31st March 2015 due to the recent
appointment of Dr. Dan Bunstone as our Clinical Chair. Dr Laura Mount has taken up this position
with effect from 6th May 2015.
The Governing Body membership differs from predecessor organisations in that there is significantly
higher proportion of GPs. This reflects the fact that, as a membership organisation of general
practices, front line clinicians are integral to the commissioning decisions of the CCG. In addition, a
specialist doctor and registered nurse are present to represent a wider clinical view and the
attendance of a Healthwatch member ensures there is a patient voice at all of our meetings.
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Further details of members of other committees can be found within the Annual Governance
Statement.
A Declaration of Interests by the Governing Body Members Board Members forms Appendix 3.
Full details of remuneration of Governing Body Members are provided at Appendix 4.
The Governing Body is not aware of any relevant audit information that has been withheld from the
clinical commissioning group’s external auditors, and members of the Governing Body take all
necessary steps to make them-selves aware of relevant information and to ensure that this is passed
to the external auditors where appropriate.
Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group had an Audit Committee on a quarterly basis which
regularly reviewed the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of integrated
governance, risk management and internal control that operates across the whole of the Clinical
Commissioning Group’s activities and supported the organisation’s goals.
Signed:

Dr Andrew Davies
Clinical Chief Officer
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Remuneration Report
Terms of Reference for the Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee of Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has recommended to
their Governing Body the remuneration and terms of service for the Chief Accountable Officer,
Chair, Chief Finance Officer, and members of the Senior Management Team to ensure they are
fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the organisation. These recommendations are in
accordance within the requirements of the nationally developed Framework for Very Senior
Managers. Advice to the Governing Body on such remuneration includes all aspects of salary,
provisions for other benefits including pensions and cars as well as arrangements for termination of
employment and other contractual terms. Additionally, the Remuneration Committee:
 Make recommendations to the Governing Body on the remuneration, allowances and terms
of service of other officer members to ensure they are fairly rewarded for their individual
contribution to the organisation;
 Monitor and evaluate the performance of individual and other members of the senior
management team; and
 Advise on, and oversee, appropriate contractual arrangements for such staff including the
proper calculation and scrutiny of termination payments taking account of such national
guidance as is appropriate.
Composition & Membership of the Remuneration Committee
The membership comprises of the two Lay Members, Gareth Hall and Nick Atkin, the Chair of the
Governing Body Dr Andrew Davies, and three of the GP Governing Body Members Dr Simon
Redfearn, Dr Anita Malkhandi, and Dr Dan Bunstone. The Committee is chaired by the Governing
Body Lay Member, Nick Atkin.
Further details relating to the attendance and frequency at meetings can be found in Appendix 1 of
this report.
Independent Human Resources (HR) advice and guidance is provided by the Head of Human
Resources through the service level agreement in place with the North West and, if required, ad hoc
external subject matter expert consultancy. This ad-hoc advice relates to legislative employee
matters and benchmarking of NHS salaries not included in the service level agreement.
The majority of the CCG support staff are employed on Agenda for Change (AfC) terms and
conditions. For other appointments such as Accountable Officer, Chair, Chief Finance Officer, and GP
Governing Body Members; remuneration is based on HAY Group guidance. Where staff are not on
Agenda for Change, local agreements are in place, for example GP leads; agreement with respect to
salary is based on independent HR advice as cited above in relation to terms and conditions.
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The Committee’s role is to oversee and agree the remuneration and Terms of Service of the Chief
Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief Officer, the Senior Management Team of the Governing Body,
together with any staff employed by the CCG whose terms of service are not covered by the national
agreements. It provides advice to the Governing Body on a range of employment issues for all staff
(for example pensions, car schemes and termination of employment). The committee is established
in accordance with NHS Warrington CCG’s Constitution, and Scheme of delegation.
Remuneration of senior managers
The Remuneration Committee determined the salary of the Clinical Chief Officer during 2014/15. The
remuneration package for this post is informed by the requirements of the national Very Senior
Managers policy and Hay Group recommendations.
Senior Managers Performance Related Pay
The remuneration awarded to the senior managers of NHS Warrington CCG is not subject to the
achievement of defined performance conditions.
Policy on Senior Manager Contracts
The roles of Chief Clinical Officer and Chief Financial Officer are permanent appointments, subject to
six months formal notice period for termination of contract by either the employee or employer. The
CCG reserves the right to make payment in lieu of giving notice of termination of the Employee’s
employment.
The role of Chair is subject to election and therefore the role is contracted for a single financial year
on a temporary basis. The contract will cease if the post holder fails to be elected to serve as Chair of
the CCG during the re-election process. It is extremely unlikely that the post holder will be regarded
as redundant, and entitled to a redundancy payment, in the event that the post holder fails to be
elected to serve as Chair of the CCG, while the post of Chair remains in existence.
GP Governing Body members are appointed to represent their respective Federations. The contracts
are therefore temporary in nature. It is extremely unlikely that the post holder will be regarded as
redundant, and entitled to a redundancy payment, in the event that the post holder fails to be elected
to represent their respective Federation, while the post of GP Governing Body Member remains in
existence.
Governing Body members must give at least three months written notice of their desire to cease
being a member of the CCG and the CCG will agree to this change in membership, subject to receiving
approval from NHS England.
All other posts, included as senior managers, are subject to Agenda for Change terms and conditions.

Salaries and Allowances (subject to Audit)

31

Salaries and Allowances (subject to Audit)
Governing Body Members – Remuneration in Full
2014/15

Taxable Benefits
Salary & Fees (bands of (rounded to nearest
£5,000)
£00)

Annual Performance
Related Payments
(bands of £1,000)

Long-Term
Performance Related
Bonuses (bands of
£2,500)

All Pension Related
Benefits (bands of
£2,500)

Total
(bands of £5,000)

Name & Title

£000's

£00's

£000

£000

£000

£000

Dr Andrew Davies - Chair (from 1st April 2014 to 30th November 2014)

75-80

0

0

0

0

75-80

Dr Andrew Davies - Clinical Chief Officer (from 01/12/2014 to 31st March 2015)

40-45

0

0

0

0*

40-45

Dr Simon Redfearn - GP Governing Body Member representing Phoenix Federation

30-35

0

0

0

0

30-35

Dr Anita Malkhandi - GP Governing Body Member representing Warrington Alliance Federation

30-35

0

0

0

N/A

30-35

Dr Dan Bunstone - GP Governing Body Member representing Teaching Practices Federation

30-35

0

0

0

0

30-35

Dr Anthony Parkins - GP Governing Body Member representing Healthy Warrington Federation

30-35

0

0

0

0

30-35

Dr Stephen Bentley - Specialist Doctor Governing Body Member

10-15

0

0

0

N/A

10-15

Dr Sarah Baker - Accountable Officer (Retired on Medical Grounds 30th June 2014)

80-85

10

0

0

125-127.5

210-215

John Wicks - Interim Accountable Officer (from 01/04/2014 to 30/11/2014)

130-135

120

0

0

N/A

130-135

Stephen Sutcliffe - Chief Finance Officer (from 1st April 2014 to 17th March 2015 (including Lieu of notice))

95-100

0

0

0

(2.5-3)

90-95

David Cooper - Acting Chief Finance Officer (substantive with effect from 11/03/2015)

85-90

10

0

0

42.5-45

130-135

John Wharton - Chief Nurse and Quality Lead

65-70

0

0

0

(57.5-60)

5-10

Gareth Hall - Lay Member

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

Nick Atkin - Lay Member

5-10

0

0

0

0

5-10

*NHS Warrington CCG did not make any pension contributions for Dr Andrew Davies during 2014/15. However it has subsequently come to light that Dr Davies GP Superannuation ceased on 17th January 2015, thereofore, he will be included in the Officers pension scheme with
effect from 18th January 2015. All payments relating to this will be accounted for in 2015/16.

One Governing Body member received taxable benefits from the PCT’s historic lease car scheme,
which was inherited by the CCG as part of the TUPE transfer of existing terms and conditions, within
their remuneration. Other Governing Body Members were not eligible to be part of this scheme or to
receive a taxable benefit. The taxable benefits disclosed relate to travel expenses and lease car
schemes.
Pension Benefits (subject to Audit)
All employees have access to and are entitled to join the NHS Pension Scheme which provides
pensions on a final salary basis. There are no CCG employees who have stakeholder pensions in place
of being a member of the NHS pension scheme. Pension benefits for Senior Employees at NHS
Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group in 2014/15 are detailed in the table below.
Pension Benefits for Senior Employees at NHS Warrington Clinical Commisisoning Group 2014/15

Name & Title

Real increase in
pension at age 60
(bands of £2,500)

Lump sum at age 60
Real increase in
Total accrued
related to accrued Cash Equivalent
Cash Equivalent
pension lump sum pension at age 60 at
pension at 31 Transfer Value at 31 Transfer Value at 31
at aged 60
31 March 2015
March 2015
March 2014
March 2015
(bands of £2,500) (bands of £5000)
(bands of £5,000)

Real increase in
Cash Equivalent
Transfer Value

Employer's
contribution to
partnership pension

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Dr Sarah Baker - Accountable Officer

5-7.5

15-17.5

50-55

150-155

888

0

(908)

(635)

Stephen Sutcliffe - Chief Finance Officer / Interim Accountable Officer (from 01/07/2013 to 30/11/2013)

(0-2.5)

(0-2.5)

25-30

75-80

377

394

9

6

David Cooper - Acting Chief Finance Officer (from 01/07/2013 to 30/11/2013)

0-2.5

5-7.5

10-15

40-45

168

203

31
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John Wharton - Chief Nurse and Quality Lead

(2.5-5)

(7.5-10)

30-35

95-100

675

657

(34)

(24)

Pension Details (subject to Audit)
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Pension Details (subject to Audit)

Please note that the Pension details disclosed are the full annual value as provided by NHS Business
Services Authority (NHSBSA). Senior managers who occupied a role for less than a year have not had
their contributions amended for the defined period. GP Governing Body Members, Specialist Doctor,
and Lay Members do not contribute to NHS Pensions via the CCG and therefore these details are not
available for disclosure. John Wicks, Interim Accountable Officer, was a member of the Governing
Body remunerated via off payroll arrangements and as such, no pension detail is included.
Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (subject to Audit)
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the
member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is
a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension
scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits
accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual
has accrued as a consequence of their membership of the pension scheme. This may be for more
than just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies (in which case this fact will be
noted at the foot of the table). The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of
any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the
NHS pension scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a
result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs
are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries.
Real Increase in CETV (subject to Audit)
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any
benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation
factors for the start and end of the period.
Pay Multiples (subject to Audit)
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highestpaid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Governing Body, when grossed up to
whole time equivalent, in NHS Warrington CCG during the financial year 2014-15 was £165,000. This
was 3.79 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £43,518. This ratio has reduced
from that reported in 2013-14 when the highest paid member of the Governing Body, at the same
value, was 4.64 times the median remuneration of the workforce of £35,542. The increase in the
median remuneration of the workforce is linked to the appointment of programme manager roles,
previously off-payroll engagements, onto agenda for change pay scales and an increased staffing
structure for the Clinical Quality Team

In 2014-15, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid member of the
Governing Body. Remuneration ranged from £19,027 to £165,000.
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Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay, benefits-in-kind, but
not severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent
transfer value of pensions.
Off Payroll Engagements (subject to Audit)
Details of any off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2015, for more than £220 per day and that last
longer than 6 months are disclosed in the tables below.
Off Payroll Engagements as of 31 March 2015, for more than £220 per day and that last longer than
six months are as follows:
of which…..
Specialist
GP
Contractor /
Governing
Interim Joint Funded
Body
Total Number
Staff
Managers
Members Clinical Leads

The number that have existed:
-

For less than one year at the time of reporting
For between one and two years at the time of reporting
For between two and three years at the time of reporting
For between three and four years at the time of reporting
For four or more years at the time of reporting

Total number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2015

1
6
0
1
0

1
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
1
0

0
6
0
0
0

8

1

0

1

6

of which…..
Specialist
Contractor /
Interim Joint Funded
Total Number
Managers
Staff

GP
Governing
Body
Members Clinical Leads

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration
between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015

1

1

0

0

0

Number of the above which include contractual clauses giving the clinical
commissioning group the right to request assurance in relation to Income Tax and
National Insurance obligations

1

1

0

0

0

Number for whom assurance has been requested

0

0

0

0

0

Of which:
For whom assurance has been received
For whom assurance has not been received
That have been terminated as a result of assurance not being received

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

Number of off payroll engagements of Membership Body and/or Governing Body
members, and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility, during the
financial year
Number of individuals that have been deemed "Membership Body and/or
Governing Body members, and/or senior officials with significant financial
responsibility", during the financial year (this figure includes both off-payroll and
on-payroll engagements)

Total Number
7

21

of which…..
GP
Governing
Interim Joint Funded
Body
Managers
Staff
Members Clinical Leads
1
0
6
0

1

1

10

CCG Staff
0

0

9

Note: Governing Body Members Dr Andrew Davies, Dr Antony Parkins, Dr Dan Bunstone, and Dr Simon Redfearn are included as OffPayroll and On-Payroll GP Governing Body Members in 2014/15. Dr Andrew Davies is also included within CCG staff following
appointment as Clinical Chief Officer.
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Statement of Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief Officer’s Responsibilities
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical Commissioning Group
shall have an Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief Officer and that Officer shall be appointed by the
NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England). NHS England has appointed Dr Andrew Davies to be the
Clinical Chief Officer of NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group with effect from 1st December
2014. Prior to this date, the position of Accountable Officer was held by John Wicks.
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief Officer , including responsibilities for the
propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief
Officer is answerable, for keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and enable them to
ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements of the Accounts Direction) and for
safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities), are set out in the Clinical
Commissioning Group Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief Officer Appointment Letter.
Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has directed each Clinical
Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year financial statements in the form and on the
basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis
and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of
its net expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief Officer is required to
comply with the requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health and in
particular to:






Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis;
Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Manual for Accounts issued
by the Department of Health have been followed, and disclose and explain any material
departures in the financial statements; and,
Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out
in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer / Clinical Chief Officer Appointment
Letter.

Signed:

Dr Andrew Davies
Clinical Chief Officer
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NHS WARRINGTON CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP
Governance Statement for 2014/15
Introduction & Context
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group was authorised from 1 st April 2013 under provisions
enacted in the Health & Social Care Act 2012, which amended the National Health Service Act 2006.
The clinical commissioning group operated in shadow form prior to 1 st April 2013, to allow for the
completion of the authorisation process and the establishment of function, systems and processes
prior to the clinical commission group taking on its full powers.
As at 1st April 2013, the clinical commissioning group was authorised without conditions.
In its first year of authorisation, NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group developed its
approach to and delivery of corporate governance. This statement describes how that governance
has worked in practice in terms of its Governing Body, Sub-Committees and relationship with the
wider system architecture.
As a member organisation that is founded on clinical leadership and system engagement, the CCG
has developed its governance structure to support effective and transparent decision making that
embraces genuine accountability.
Scope of Responsibility
As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that
supports the achievement of the clinical commissioning group’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst
safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally responsible, in accordance with
the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities
as set-out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.
I am responsible for ensuring that the clinical commissioning group is administered prudently and
economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding financial
propriety and regularity.
To fulfil my role as Accountable Officer I have ensured that the CCG:


complies with its:
-

-

duty to exercise its functions effectively, efficiently and economically;
duty to exercise its functions with a view to securing continuous improvement in the
quality of services provided to individuals for, or in connection with, the prevention,
diagnosis or treatment of illness;
financial obligations, including information requests;
obligations relating to accounting and auditing;
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-



duty to provide information to the NHS Commissioning Board, following requests from
Secretary of State; and
obligations under any other provision of the NHS Act 2006 Act specified by the Board for
these purposes.

performs its functions in a way which provides good value for money.

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, we have reported
on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice available, including those
aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the CCG and best
practice.
The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework
NHS Warrington CCG has a well-developed Governance Framework with partners to support
effective, safe and transparent decision making and performance management. To support the
maximisation of the ‘Warrington pound’ and integrated working, NHS Warrington CCG operates
within this overall structure which is highlighted below:

Figure: The Architectural Framework for the Warrington & Halton Partnership
Moving into 2015/16 we are developing a new architecture around the lifecycle, Starting Well, Living
Well and Ageing Well.
The next section of this report articulates the roles and functions of the CCG’s Governing Body and
Committee’s and also details of work carried out in 2014/15.
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Governing Body
The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L (2) (b) states:
‘The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made appropriate
arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally accepted principles of good
governance as are relevant to it.’
Functions - The Governing Body has the following functions conferred on it by sections 14L(2) and (3)
of the 2006 Act, inserted by section 25 the 2012 Act, together with any other functions connected
with its main functions as may be specified in regulations or in this constitution. The governing body
functions shall include:
a) ensuring that the group has appropriate arrangements in place to exercise its functions
effectively, efficiently and economically and in accordance with the groups principles of good
governance (its main function);
b) Determining the remuneration, fees and other allowances payable to employees or other
persons providing services to the group and the allowances payable under any pension
scheme it may establish under paragraph 11(4) of Schedule 1A of the 2006 Act, inserted by
Schedule 2 of the 2012 Act;
c) Approving any functions of the group that are specified in regulations
d) Additional functions delegated by the group to the governing body in the other parts of the
constitution.
Composition of the Governing Body - the Governing Body shall not have less than eleven and
comprise of:
a) The chair
b) Four representatives of member practices
c) Two lay members:
i)

One to lead on audit, remuneration and conflict of interest matters, who has
qualifications, expertise or experience “such as to enable the person to express
informed views about financial management and audit matters”;

ii)

One to lead on patient and public participation matters, who has knowledge about
the area specified in the groups Constitution “such as to enable the person to
express informed views about the discharge of the groups functions”

d) One registered nurse
e) One secondary care specialist doctor
f) The Accountable Officer
g) The Chief Finance Officer
h) Local patient representative
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The Governing Body met six times during 2014/15 and attendance was as below.
Name
Voting Members Dr Andrew Davies (in role as
CCG Chair)

In Attendance

Title
CCG Chair

Dr Andrew Davies (in role as
Clinical Chief Officer)

Clinical Chief Officer

John Wicks
David Cooper
Nick Atkin
Gareth Hall
Dr Anthony Parkins

Interim Chief Officer
Acting Chief Finance Officer
GB Lay Member/Vice Chair
GB Lay Member
GB GP Member (Healthy
Warrington Federation)

Dr Anita Malkhandi

14.5.14

9.7.14

10.9.14

12.11.14

√

√

√

√

14.1.15

11.3.15

√

√

×
√
√
√

×
√
√
√

√
√
√
√

√
√
√
√

√
√
√

×
×
√

√

√

√

√

√

×

GB GP Member (Warrington
Alliance Federation)

√

√

√

×

√

√

Dr Dan Bunstone

GB GP Member (Teaching
Practices Federation)

√

√

×

√

√

√

Dr Simon Redfearn

GB GP Member (Phoenix
Group Federation)

√

√

√

√

√

√

Dr Stephen Bentley
John Wharton
Patricia Taylor
Linda Bennett

GB Secondary Care Doctor
Chief Nurse & Quality Lead
Patient Representative
Associate Director - Health
Services Commissioning

√
√
×

√
√
×

√
√
√

√
√
√

√
×
√

√
×
√

×

√

√

√

√

√

Simon Kenton

Assistant Director Integrated Commissioning

√

√

√

√

√

√

Nick Armstrong

Chief Operating Officer

√

√

√

√

√

√
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Committees of the Governing Body
The Governing Body has appointed the following committees and sub-committees:
a) Audit Committee – the audit committee, which is accountable to the group’s governing body, provides the governing body with an
independent and objective view of the CCG’s financial systems, financial information and compliance with laws, regulations and directions
governing the group in so far as they relate to finance and performance (including outcomes of clinical audits). The audit committee chair is a
CCG lay member and governance lead and has a wealth of experience working in the commercial banking industry. During 2014/15, for all
strategic risks, the Audit Committee has received assurance from the relevant CCG lead, including the Chief Finance Officer, Chief Nurse &
Quality Lead, and Associate Director of Health Services Commissioning. The governing body has approved and keeps under review the terms
of reference for the audit committee, which includes information on the membership of the audit committee. The Audit Committee met five
times during 2013/14 with attendance was as follows:
Present

Name
Gareth Hall
Dr Andrew Davies

In Attendance

John Wicks

30-Apr
X
X

28-May



10-Sep









X


X






X

Left the CCG

X
X



X
X




X
X


X
X

10-Dec



25-Feb

X
Left the CCG
Left the CCg

Stephen Sutcliffe
David Cooper
Lesley MacLeod
Rebecca Knight
Dr Dan Bunstone
Dr Stephen Bentley
Nick Atkin
Nicholas Armstrong
Bryan Webb
Dr Anthony Parkins
Dr Anita Malkhandi


X

X



X

X




X
X
X

X
X
X


X

X

X



41

b) Remuneration Committee – the remuneration committee, which is accountable to the CCG’s governing body makes recommendations to the
governing body on determinations about the remuneration, fees and other allowances for employees and for people who provide services to
the group and on determinations about allowances under any pension scheme that the group may establish as an alternative to the NHS
pension scheme. The governing body has approved and keeps under review the terms of reference for the remuneration committee, which
includes information on the membership of the remuneration committee.
The Remuneration Committee met three times during 2014/15 and attendance was as below:

Members

In Attendance

Name
Andrew Davies
Andrew Davies
Anthony Parkins
Anita Malkhandi
Simon Redfearn
Dan Bunstone
David Cooper
Nick Atkin
Gareth Hall
Stephen Bentley
John Wharton
John Wicks
Sean Daly
Nick Armstrong

Title
CCG Chair
Clinical Chief Officer
GP GB Member
GP GB Member
GP GB Member
GP GB Member
Acting Chief Finance Officer
GB Lay Member
GB Lay Member
Secondary Care Doctor
Chief Nurse & Quality Lead
Interim Chief Officer
HR Representative
Chief Operating Officer

20.10.14
×
×
×
×
×
×
×
√
×
√
×
√
×

12.11.14
√
√
×
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
√
×

11.2.15
√
×
√
×
×
√
√
×

√
√
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c) Quality Committee – the Quality Committee, which is accountable to the group’s governing body, with the purpose of assuring the group on the
safety of commissioned services any associated risks or areas of quality improvement. It operates to a programme of business, agreed by the
governing body, which is flexible to new and emerging priorities and risks. The governing body has approved and keeps under review the terms of
reference for the Quality Committee, which includes information on the membership of the Quality Committee. The Quality Committee met seven
times during 2014/15 and attendance was as below:

Voting Members

Core Advisory

In Attendance

Name

Title

Apr

Jun

Aug

Oct

Dec

Feb

Mar

Dr Anita Malkhandi
(Chair)
Dr Anthony Parkins

GP/Governing Body Member

√

×

√

√

√

√

√

GP/Governing Body Member

√

×

√

×

√

√

√

John Wicks

Interim Chief Officer

√

×

√

×

Nicholas Armstrong

Chief Operating Officer

√

×

×

×

√

√

√

John Wharton

Chief Nurse & Quality Lead

√

√

√

√

√

√

×

Nick Atkin

GB Lay Member

√

×

×

×

√

√

√

Dr Andrew Davies

√

×

√

Rebecca Knight

In role as Clinical Chief Officer (from
December 2014)
Head of Assurance & Risk

√

√

√

√

×

√

√

Stephen Sutcliffe

Chief Finance Officer

×

×

×

David Cooper

Acting Chief Finance Officer

×

√

√

√

Dr Dan Bunstone

GP/Governing Body Member

√

√

×

×

×

×

√

Dr Stephen Bentley

GB Secondary Care Doctor

√

√

×

√

√

√

√

Dr Simon Redfearn

GP/Governing Body Member

√

√

√

×

√

√

√

Dr Andrew Davies
Linda Bennett

×
√

√
√

×
√

√
√

×

√

×

Dr Justin McCarthy

In role as CCG Chair (until December 2014)
Associate Director - Health Services
Commissioning
Clinical Lead

√

×

×

√

√

√

√

Dr Neil Fisher

Clinical Lead

√

Gareth Hall

GB Lay Member

√

×

×

×

√

√

×

Simon Kenton

Assistant Director - Integrated
Commissioning

√

√

×

×

×

×

Pam Broadhead

Head of Performance

×

√

√

√

√

√

√

Dawn Chalmers

Deputy Chief Nurse

√

×

√

√
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d) Finance and Performance Committee – the Finance and Performance Committee, which is accountable to the group’s governing body, with the

purpose of ensuring robust arrangements are in place to oversee the financial and performance management of services commissioned by the
Group. The governing body has approved and keeps under review the terms of reference for the Finance and Performance Committee, which
includes information on the membership of the Finance and Performance Committee.
The Finance and Performance Committee met 12 times during 2014/15 and attendance was as below:

Present

Name
Dr Dan Bunstone
David Cooper
John Wicks
Gareth Hall
Dr Simon Redfearn

Apr



X


Jun


X
X


Jul




X

Aug



X


Sep



X


Oct



X


Nov


X
X


Nov






Dec
X


Jan



Feb



Mar
X








X





Core Advisory

Simon Kenton
Pam Broadhead
Linda Bennett


X






X

X

X











X







X

X



X

X

X

In Attendance

Dr Andrew Davies
Cheryl McKay
Dr Anita Malkhandi
Dr Anthony Parkins
Dr Stephen Bentley
John Wharton
Nick Armstrong
Bryan Webb
Nick Atkin
Stephen Sutcliffe
Amanda Risino








X

X



X

X

X
X
X
X






X



X

X





X

X
X

X

X




















X




X
X
X
X
X

X


X

X

X
X



X
X

X





X







X




X
X
X
X
X




X
X




X

X

X

X

X
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CCG Risk Management 2014/15
Description of Principal Risks
Warrington CCG has an internal Assurance Framework in place which maps the strategic risks against
each strategic objective. The purpose of the Assurance Framework is to provide an overview, to the
Governing Body, of any strategic risks which threaten the achievement of the strategic objectives.
Evidence is shown on the Assurance Framework in order that where there are gaps or limited
assurance; there can be agreement about the additional assurance or evidence required for the
relevant risks.
The Assurance Framework is scrutinised by the Audit Committee before being presented to the
Governing Body to ensure that the relevant controls are in place and associated action plans to
address any identified gaps. The Audit Committee identified areas where there was limited or no
assurance in 2014/15 and requested further action and updates in relation to these areas.
Further improvements have been identified as needing implementation to provide additional
assurance to the Governing Body. An example of an improvement is that reports from partnership
meetings (such as the Health and Wellbeing Board) need to be incorporated into the reporting
structure within the CCG to ensure that there is full oversight of the assurances relating to specific
strategic risks. These improvements will be implemented going forward in 2015/16.
In addition, each CCG is subject to a quarterly CCG Assurance Framework review meeting with NHS
England. This meeting and the associated paperwork cross references with the internal Assurance
Framework and is how NHS England is assured that the CCG is delivering an effective assurance
programme.
The strategic objectives and associated risks, which were reviewed and agreed by the CCG for
2014/15, are as follows:
Strategic objective
A – Improve healthy life
expectancy for all
B – Reduce inequalities

C – All commissioned services
support the delivery of the NHS
Constitution
D – Continually improve the
quality of services to the
population of Warrington

Strategic risk
Failure to demonstrate improvement
Failure to demonstrate improvement to the
whole population
Failure to identify appropriate segmentation for
the local population
Failure to appropriately deliver resources that
target identified need
Failure to understand the NHS Constitution in a
local context
Failure to impact on indirectly commissioned
services with regard to the NHS Constitution
Failure to agree a common definition of quality
Failure to establish effective quality monitoring
Failure to identify and act upon early warnings of
a failing provider
Failure to performance manage to ensure
continuous improvement
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Failure to impact on quality standards applied to
indirectly commissioned services
Failure to agree and measure outcomes
Failure to manage impact on quality of system
transformation
E – Achieve sustained financial
balance

F – Build an effective and
motivated whole system
workforce

G – Ensure sound governance
arrangements are in place

Failure to develop a financial strategy
Failure to implement the financial strategy
Failure to ensue sound business practices are at
the heart of running the CCG
Failure to secure best value
Failure to define the needs of the workforce
Failure to promote the organisational culture that
meets the needs of the workforce
Failure to implement a system which monitors
success
Failure to ensure we are compliant with our
statutory responsibilities

Self-certification of compliance with statutory duty of emergency planning
All CCGs are identified as Category 2 responders under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. This
requires CCGs to share information and co-operate with other agencies in relation to planning for
emergencies. In addition, the Department of Health has indicated an expectation that CCGs should
also have business continuity plans in place.
An Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response (EPRR) Annual Report was presented to NHS
Warrington CCG Governing Body on 12 November 2014. The Annual Report provides an overview of
compliance with statutory duties and the ongoing programme of work. In addition, NHS England
required all NHS Trusts to provide a statement of compliance for 2014/15 and a self-assessment
against core standards. This was provided to NHS England towards the end of 2014 which indicated
that NHS Warrington CCG had substantial compliance with an action plan in place to improve plans
for business continuity.
Self-certification of compliance with statutory duty of safeguarding
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is statutorily responsible for ensuring that it,
and the organisations from which it commission services, provides a safe system that safeguards
children and adults at risk of abuse or neglect. This includes specific responsibilities for children in
care and for supporting the Child Death Overview Process, to include sudden unexpected death in
childhood. NHS Warrington CCG needs to be assured that the organisations from which it
commissions services have effective safeguarding arrangements in place. This assurance is sought
through contract management and audits.
Local authorities have the same responsibilities in relation to the public health services that they
commission. NHS Warrington CCG has a statutory duty to be member of Local Safeguarding Children
Board (LSCB) and Local Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) and is expected to be working in
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partnership with local authorities to fulfil their safeguarding responsibilities. NHS Warrington CCG
ensures that robust processes are in place to learn lessons from cases where children or adults at risk
die or are seriously harmed and abuse or neglect is suspected. This will include contributing fully to
Serious Case Reviews (SCRs) which are commissioned by the Local Safeguarding Children Board
(LSCB) or a Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) commissioned by the Local Safeguarding Adults Board
(LSAB) and also, where appropriate, conducting Individual Management Reviews and Domestic
Homicide Reviews.
NHS Warrington CCG has implemented all recommendations from The Safeguarding Vulnerable
People in the Reformed NHS Accountability and Assurance Framework 2015 to demonstrate that
there are appropriate systems in place for discharging their responsibilities in respect of
safeguarding, including:






Plans to train their staff in recognising and reporting safeguarding issues;
A clear line of accountability for safeguarding properly reflected in the CCG governance
arrangements;
Appropriate arrangements to co-operate with local authorities in the operation of LSCB/LSAB
and Health and Wellbeing Boards;
Ensuring effective arrangements for information sharing;
Securing the expertise of a designated doctor and nurse for safeguarding children and for
children in care, and a designated paediatrician for unexpected deaths in childhood, along
with a Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Adults at risk.

The CCG is able to demonstrate that their designated clinical experts (children and adults), are
embedded in the clinical decision making of the organisation, with the authority to work within local
health economies to influence local thinking and practice, as follows:




The role of designated professionals for safeguarding children and adults is explicitly defined
in job descriptions, and sufficient time, funding, supervision and support is allowed to enable
them to fulfil their child safeguarding responsibilities effectively;

Designated professionals, as clinical experts and strategic leaders, are a vital source of advice
to the CCG, the local authority, the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB), Local
Safeguarding Adult Board (LSAB) and the Health and Wellbeing Board, and of advice and
support for other health professionals in provider organisations.

NHS Warrington CCG considers that its role is more than managing contracts and employing expert
practitioners:






It is about fulfilling its statutory duty under Section 11 and Section 13 The Children Act 2004;
Working in accordance with Working Together 2015 and the Intercollegiate Document 2014;
Providing an Annual Safeguarding Report to the Governing Body;
Ensuring that safeguarding is part of the organisation’s audit plan;
Working with others to ensure that critical services are in place to respond to children and
adults who are at risk or have been harmed, and it is about delivering improved outcomes and
improving the life chances for the most vulnerable;
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Carry out quality monitoring visits to provider organisations, using a monitoring framework
and through the newly formed CCG Quality Team.

In May 2014 The Care Act was passed, representing the most significant reform of care support in
more than 60 years:





NHS Warrington CCG has in preparation for the Act and the awaited guidance worked with
providers and the Local authority to review local multiagency safeguarding procedures;
The CCG now has a statutory duty to be a member of the Local Safeguarding Adult Board
(LSAB) as a requirement of the Care Act and had already been fulfilling this function prior to
legislation;
The CCG continues to work with key agencies to embed the Care Act guidance into
safeguarding activity.

NHS Warrington CCG Plans for 2015-2016 are to:



Ensure the organisation agrees and works to both the LSAB and LSCB priorities;
Ensure that the LSAB and Community Safety Partnership (CSP), ratify the multi-agency selfneglect policy.

Description of risk management framework / risk assessment / effectiveness of risk management
NHS Warrington CCG has a Risk Management Policy in place which outlines the process and system in
place to manage risk. Risks are addressed as strategic risks or operational risks. The Assurance
Framework identifies those risks which are seen to potentially threaten the achievement of the
strategic objectives and operational risks are those risks identified by CCG staff as a result of workstreams and functions being delivered on a daily basis.
The Policy references the risk appetite of the CCG. The aim is not to remove all risk but to recognise
that some level of risk will always exist and that these risks must be managed. The options for
treating any risk will be to treat, tolerate, transfer or terminate. The majority of risks identified are
treated.
The risk assessment model is based on a grading of impact and likelihood. Risks are scored against
the impact and likelihood and managed locally and raised through the Assurance Framework, in the
event of the risk being scored at a high level. Assurance identifies the evidence in place which shows
that the control measures are effective. Typical sources of assurance include:









Internal audit reviews;
External audit reviews;
Management reviews;
Reports or inspections from regulators
Patient surveys/ experience;
Performance reports to Committees/ Governing Body;
Meeting minutes showing review and scrutiny of controls;
Monitoring of Key Performance Indicators;
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Staff survey results;
Planned testing of systems.

Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) undertook an internal audit relating to the risk management
arrangements in 2013/14. The final report for this internal audit was presented to the CCG in March
2014.
MIAA internal audit gave limited assurance and identified some weaknesses in the design and
operation of controls. Five recommendations were made to improve risk management arrangements.
As a result of the recommendations, the following improvements have been made:






The CCG has changed its risk management database from Datix to GP Team Net. This is
facilitated by the CCG as opposed to the Commissioning Support Unit (CSU);
All risks have been transferred over to GP Team Net;
Risk reports are now provided to the relevant CCG Committee to provide an overview of the
appropriate risks, controls and assurances in place and actions required to mitigate the risks
further;
Delayed actions are reported to Committees and further detail is provided where requested
to ensure that controls are in place to track progress;
An overview of the Risk Register is provided on a regular basis to the Management Team for
discussion and challenge.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion for 2014/15 is as follows:
1. Director of Audit’s Opinion
1.1 Introduction
In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, the Director of Internal Audit (HoIA) is
required to provide an annual opinion, based upon and limited to the work performed, on the
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s risk management, control and
governance processes (i.e. the organisation’s system of internal control). This is achieved through
a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved by the Audit Committee, which
should provide a reasonable level of assurance subject to the inherent limitations described below.
The purpose of this Director of Internal Audit Opinion is to contribute to the assurances available
to the Accountable Officer and the Governing Body which underpin the Governing Body’s own
assessment of the effectiveness of the organisation’s system of internal control. This Opinion will
assist the Governing Body in the completion of its Annual Governance Statement.
1.2 Opinion
My overall opinion is:
Significant Assurance can be given that that there is a generally sound system of internal control
designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are generally being applied
consistently. However, some weaknesses in the design or inconsistent application of controls put
the achievement of a particular objective at risk.
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1.3 Basis of Forming the Opinion
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows:
Assurance Framework
An Assurance Framework has been established which is designed and operating to meet the
requirements of the Annual Governance Statement and provide reasonable assurance that there is
an effective system of internal control to manage the principal risks identified by the organisation.
Assurance across the organisation’s critical business systems:
Access to Services


The review of Financial Systems (including management of budgets) provided significant
assurance. Key controls were found to be in place and operating effectively around areas
such as budget setting, budget monitoring and journals.

Transparency and Governance


Whilst significant assurance has been provided over the operational effectiveness of the
CCG Committee's, a number of enhancements have been made to strengthen the
arrangements.

•

The review of the Remuneration Committee provided limited assurance with a number of
areas identified for enhancement.

Patient Participation and Customer Service
•

Significant Assurance provided in relation to systems and processes ensuring that the CCG
fulfils its statutory duties for Safeguarding Children.

Informed Commissioning
•

The review of the Commissioning Strategy provided Significant Assurance and confirmed
that overall the arrangements for the production and approval of the 5 year strategic
plans and 2 year operational plans were satisfactory.

•

The review of the Information Governance Assurance provided Significant Assurance in
relation to the CCG's IG infrastructure and the validity of the intended March submission.

Higher Standards


Limited Assurance was provided for the Better Care Fund (Health & Wellbeing Board)
review. Governance, risk and project management arrangements require strengthening.

Action has been agreed by Management to address the recommendations made in the internal
audit reviews and we will undertake a follow up of the recommendations to provide assurance to
the Audit Committee that the issues
raised have been addressed.
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Contribution to Governance, Risk Management and Internal Control enhancements:
•

Insight into the overall governance and authorisation conditions gained from liaison
throughout the year with management.

•

Detailed insight into the overall Governance and Assurance processes gained from liaison
throughout the year with the Senior Management Team.

•

Regular review of Governing Body papers.

•

Specific review of Committee arrangements.

•

On-going discussion with lead officers, and Lay Members throughout the year.

•

Effective utilisation of internal audit including in year communication, and changes to the
audit plan in respect of the IG Toolkit and the commissioning strategy review.

•

Follow-up, demonstrating significant progress against recommendations to improve systems
and controls.

•

Provision of MIAA briefings including Duty of Candour, Investigations, Regulation,
Sustainability, Human Factors, Safe Staffing and Fit and Proper Person Test.

•

Involvement through MIAA events, including CCG Lay Member Learning Series and Audit
Committee Chairs.

•

Engagement with MIAA Insights benchmarking and outcome reporting, including CCG
Assurance Frameworks, and Gifts and Hospitality.

The Opinion does not imply that Internal Audit have reviewed all risks and assurances relating to
the organisation. The opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans
generated from a robust and organisation-led Assurance Framework. As such, it is one component
that the Governing Body takes into account in making its Annual Governance Statement.

Tim Crowley

Tim Crowley Director of Audit, MIAA March 2015

The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework
A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the clinical
commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives. It is aimed to prioritise
the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level rather than eliminating
all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness
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Looking after personal data & Information Governance
The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by which the NHS
handles information about patients and employees, in particular personal identifiable information.
The NHS Information Governance Framework is supported by an information governance toolkit and
the annual submission process provides assurances to the Clinical Commissioning Group, other
organisations and to individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, efficiently
and effectively.
As technological advances multiply, so do people’s concerns about the safety of their personal data.
Information Governance is addressed at the highest level within Warrington Clinical Commissioning
Group. All staff are required to receive mandatory Information Governance training and during
2014/15 the Clinical Commissioning Group gained Level 2 status. Privacy Impact Assessments are
carried out before introducing new projects or changing a service involving person-identifiable
information.
We continue to develop and agree Information Sharing Protocols, working in partnership with health,
social care, other statutory bodies, commercial healthcare bodies and the voluntary sector.
SUMMARY OF PERSONAL DATA INCIDENTS IN 2013/14
Category
Nature of Incident
I
Loss of inadequately protected electronic equipment, devices
or paper documents from secured NHS premises
II
Loss of inadequately protected electronic equipment, devices
or paper documents from outside secured NHS premises
III
Insecure disposal of inadequately protected electronic
equipment, devices or paper documents
IV
Unauthorised disclosure
V

Other

Total
0
0
0
0
0

There were no Information Governance related incidents reported to the Information Commissioners
during 2013/14.
Equality, Diversity & Human Rights Obligations
Control measures are in place to ensure that the Clinical Commissioning Group complies with the
required public sector equality duty set out in the Equality Act 2010.
Equality & Diversity
The CCG is required to pay due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) as defined by the
Equality Act 2010. Failure to comply has legal, financial and reputational risks.
The key functions that enable Warrington CCG to make commissioning decisions and monitor the
performance of their providers have to demonstrate (in an auditable manner) that the needs of
protected groups have been considered in:
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Commissioning processes
Consultation and engagement
Procurement functions
Contract specifications
Quality contract and performance schedules, and
Governance systems

Promoting equality is at the heart of NHS Warrington CCG core values, ensuring that we commission
services fairly and that no community or group is left behind in the changes that will be made to
health services to meet the challenges the NHS face, as outlined in the ‘Five Year Forward View’.
We will continue to work internally, and in partnership with our Providers, community and voluntary
sector and other key organisations to ensure that we advance equality of opportunity and meet our
exacting requirements of the Equality Act 2010.
The Equality Act 2010 requires us to meet our Public Sector Equality Duty across a range of protected
groups including age, gender, race, sex, sexual orientation, religion/belief, gender identity,
marital/civil partnership status and pregnancy/maternity status.
Equality objectives
We are required to prepare and publish Equality Objectives to meet our Specific Duty as outlined in
the Equality Act 2010. Our plan is specific and measurable and we will update on an annual basis.
The CCG understands that at sometimes in our lives we may face barriers in relation to accessing
health services or experience different outcomes. The CCG wants to reduce the health differences
across our diverse communities and our Equality Objectives will support us to do this.
Our Equality Objectives are:
1.
To make fair and transparent commissioning decisions;
2.
To improve access and outcomes for patients and communities who experience disadvantage;
3.
To improve the equality performance of our providers through robust procurement and
monitoring practice
4.
To empower and engage our workforce
Equality Delivery Systems 2
To help us set our Equality Objectives we are currently undertaking Equality Delivery Systems (EDS) 2.
Warrington CCG has been assessed as “developing and achieving” reflecting the need to fully embed
equality and diversity. The CCG is currently working toward to improving its performance around the
following EDS 2 indicators, over the next 2 years:•
•
•

1.1 Services are commissioned, procured, designed and delivered to meet the health needs of
local communities
2.1 People, carers and communities can readily access hospital, community health or primary
care services and should not be denied access on unreasonable grounds
4.2 Papers that come before the Governing Body and other major Committees identify
equality-related impacts including risks, and say how these risks are to be managed

The outcomes and recommendations of the assessment will be presented to the CCG in June 2015.
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Provider performance
All our key NHS providers have undertaken the Equality Delivery Systems (EDS) 2 assessment and
have set equality objectives in accordance with their requirements. We are working closely with our
providers to improve equality performance and access and outcomes for protected groups through
robust contract monitoring, via the quality contract schedule.
The gender analysis of NHS Warrington CCG as at the 31st March 2015 is as follows:
Role

Female

Male

Female %

Governing Body Members 2
9
18%
Senior Management Team
4
6
40%
Total CCG Staff
38
19
67%
Staff on VSM
0
1
0%
NHS Warrington CCG does not have any disabled employees.

Male %

Total

82%
60%
33%
100%

11
10
57
1

Sustainable Development Obligations
NHS Warrington CCG takes its responsibilities to the environment very seriously. It undertakes a
range of measures that are mindful of the future environment and these include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The CCG Headquarters (Arpley House) in partnership with landlords the Homes and
Communities Agency has daily recycling of paper, cans and plastics;
Throughout 2014/15 Arpley House has undergone a programme of work to reduce energy use
including the installation of sensor reactive lighting and water saving taps;
The CCG promotes the use of telephone/ video conferencing to reduce the carbon emissions
from use of cars;
The CCG encourages car sharing when attending off-site meetings;
Promoting back to back black and white printing where paper copies are required (for
example, Governing Body papers for members of the public);
Using tablet computers for all staff, reducing the need for hard paper copies; and
Storing scanned documents electronically where legally appropriate.

We continue to develop plans to assess risks, enhance our performance and reduce our impact,
including against carbon reduction and climate change adaptation objectives. This includes
establishing mechanisms to embed social and environmental sustainability across policy
development, business planning and in commissioning. We will ensure the clinical commissioning
group complies with its obligations under the Climate Change Act 2008, including the Adaptation
Reporting power, and the Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012.
Signed:

Dr Andrew Davies
Clinical Chief Officer
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APPENDIX 1 - REGISTER OF INTERESTS
Name

Position

Who has the
Interest?

Empl
oyee

Close
Relation
and/or
associate
√

Name of
close
relative/
associate

Nature of 'Interest' - brief details

Date interest commenced

Date interest
will cease (if
known)

1. Age UK (Lancaster) 2.
Bentham Playing Fields
Association, 3. Bentham
Beagles Running Club

1. Wife is employed as Dementia
Manager for Age UK (Lancaster), 2 Nick
is Chair of Bentham Playing Fields
Association (a charity based in
Bentham, North Yorkshire unremunerated) 3. Nick is secretary,
treasury and membership secretary of
Bentham Beagles Running Club, based
in Bentham, North Yorkshire
(unremunerated)

1. January 2013, 2. June 2013 and 3. October 2011

n/k

1. 30/08/05 and 2. 01/04/13

n/k

Nick
Armstrong

Chief
Operating
Officer

√

Nick Atkin

Governing
Body Vice
Chair/Lay
Member

√

1. Halton Housing Trust
2. Warrington Homeless
Commission

1. Chief Executive - paid employee and
responsible to the Board. One current
HHT is a Lay Member on Halton CCG's
Governing Body (Ingrid Fife) and one
former HHT Board Member (Dave
Merrill)

Linda
Bennett

Associate
Director,
Health
Services
Commissio
ning
Secondary
Care
Doctor
Chair of
CCG

√

Warrington Health Plus

Board Director for the Community
Interest Company, representing NHS
Warrington CCG

√

Spire Cheshire

Weekly private session at Spire
Cheshire

√

1. Whitefriars Medical
Limited, 2. Penketh
Pharma Ltd, 3. Spire
Cheshire 4. Penketh
Health Centre and 5.
Speed Medical Ltd

1. Director, 2. Shareholder (effectively
landlord to Lloyds Pharmacy - no
interest in the pharmacy business) 3.
Education Adviser - remunerated 4. GP
Partner and 5. Chief Medical Officer remunerated role on consultancy basis

Stephen
Bentley
Dan
Bunstone

David Cooper

Chief
Financial

Diane
Armstrong
(wife)

Name of company/
organisation/ body that
interest is in

Jan-15

n/k

1989

n/k

mixed dates from 2009 5. commenced 6th April 2015

Nil Return

n/k

Nil
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Officer
Andrew
Davies
Simon
Kenton

Anita
Malkhandi

Anthony
Parkins

Simon
Redfearn

John
Wharton

Clinical
Chief
Officer
Assistant
Director
Integrated
Commissio
ning,
Warrington
Borough
Council/Wa
rrington
CCG
GP
Governing
Body
Member
GP
Governing
Body
Member

GP
Governing
Body
Member
Chief Nurse
& Quality
Lead

√

Kimberley
Davies
(wife)

√

√

√

mother

√

√

Dr Kathryn
Parkins
(wife)

√

Warrington & Halton
Hospitals NHS

staff nurse

1. Warrington Borough
Council, 2. Lancashire
Care NHS Foundation
Trust, 3. Wirral
University Hospital
Teaching NHS
Foundation Trust, 4.
Warrington Health Plus

1. Council contribute to salary, 2. Public
Governor, 3. Public Governor and 4.
Director representing Warrington
Borough Council

1. Non NHS Aesthetic
Clinic, 2. Livewire, 3.
Prospect House Care
Home
2. Livewire

1. Dr Malkhandi has a non-nhs
aesthetic clinic, 2. Board member of
Livewire, 3. Mother has a care home in
Rainhill near Prescot, Merseyside
1. Anthony is a partner at Westbrook
Medical Centre 2. Anthony is a GP with
special interest in cardiology,
Warrington & Halton Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust, 3. Wife is Consultant
Intensivist, Alder Hey Childrens NHS
Foundation Trust and 4. Lead
Consultant, North West and North
Wales Paediatric Transport Service
Provider of personal medical services
to patients who live in Birchwood and
surrounding area

3. Prospect House Care
Home

Nov-14

1. March 2013, 2. May 2013, 3. May 2013 and January
2015

n/k

n/k

n/k

Anthony Parkins - commenced in 2000, Kathryn Parkins commenced Alder Hey 2003 and transport service in 2009

1984

n/k

n/k

Nil
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Entity name:
This year
This year ended
This year commencing:

NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group
2014-15
31 March 2015
1 April 2014
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended
31 March 2015
Note
Total Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits
Operating Expenses
Other operating revenue
Net operating expenditure before interest

2013-14
£000

2,923
246,560
(413)
249,070

2,779
236,550
(592)
238,737

Investment Revenue
Other (gains)/losses
Finance costs
Net operating expenditure for the financial year

0
0
0
249,070

0
0
0
238,737

Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption
Total Net Expenditure for the year

0
249,070

0
238,737

5.1.1
6
3

2,437
1,938
(72)
4,303

2,371
2,664
(5)
5,030

5.1.1
6
3

486
244,622
(341)
244,767

408
233,886
(587)
233,707

Of which:
Administration Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits
Operating Expenses
Other operating revenue
Net administration costs before interest
Programme Income and Expenditure
Employee benefits
Operating Expenses
Other operating revenue
Net programme expenditure before interest

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Impairments and reversals
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Movements in other reserves
Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain/(loss) on assets held for sale
Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes
Share of (profit)/loss of associates and joint ventures
Reclassification Adjustments
On disposal of available for sale financial assets
Total Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year

5.1.1
6
3

2014-15
£000

2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

7
0
0
0
(7)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

249,070

238,737

The notes on pages 5 to 25 form part of this statement.
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NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2014-15
Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended
31 March 2015
Revaluation
reserve
£000

General fund
£000

Other reserves
£000

Total reserves
£000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Balance at 1 April 2014

(8,952)

0

0

(8,952)

Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS bodies
Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 1 April 2014

0
(8,952)

0
0

0
0

0
(8,952)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15
Net operating expenditure for the financial year

(249,070)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve
Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year
Net funding
Balance at 31 March 2015

(249,070)

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(258,022)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(258,022)

248,063

0

0

248,063

(9,959)

0

0

(9,959)

Revaluation
reserve
£000

General fund
£000

Other reserves
£000

Total reserves
£000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Balance at 1 April 2013
Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 April 2013 transition
Adjusted NHS Commissioning Board balance at 1 April 2013
Changes in NHS Commissioning Board taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Net operating costs for the financial year
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets
Total revaluations against revaluation reserve
Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets
Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals
Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions
Movements in other reserves
Transfers between reserves
Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets
Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies
Reserves eliminated on dissolution
Net Recognised NHS Commissioning Board Expenditure for the Financial Year
Net funding
Balance at 31 March 2014

0

0

0

0

(7)
(7)

7
7

0
0

0
0

(238,737)

(238,737)

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
7
0
0
0
0
0
(238,737)

0
0
(7)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
(7)
0
7
0
0
0
0
0
(238,737)

229,785

0

0

229,785

(8,952)

0

0

(8,952)

The notes on pages 5 to 25 form part of this statement.
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NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2014-15
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended
31 March 2015
Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating expenditure for the financial year
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairments and reversals
Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption
Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange
Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash
Interest paid
Release of PFI deferred credit
Other Gains & Losses
Finance Costs
Unwinding of Discounts
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Provisions utilised
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities

6
6

11
13
14
14

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment
(Payments) for intangible assets
(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health
(Payments) for other financial assets
(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT)
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT)
Loans made in respect of LIFT
Loans repaid in respect of LIFT
Rental revenue
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Parliamentary Funding Received
Other loans received
Other loans repaid
Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT
Capital grants and other capital receipts
Capital receipts surrendered
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year

12

2014-15
£000

2013-14
£000

(249,070)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(680)
0
207
0
0
1,452
(248,091)

(238,737)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
(1,606)
0
10,605
0
0
0
(229,738)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

(248,091)

(229,738)

248,063
0
0
0
0
0
248,063

229,785
0
0
0
0
0
229,785

(28)

47

47

0

0

0

19

47

The notes on pages 5 to 25 form part of this statement.
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Notes to the financial statements
1

Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of
the Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Manual for Accounts 2014-15 issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the
Manual for Accounts follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to
clinical commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where
the Manual for Accounts permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the
particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The
particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing
with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1

Going Concern
These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.
Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated,
as evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.
Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the
same assets, by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of Financial
Statements. If services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2

Accounting Convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3

Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations
Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be
‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to
another.

1.4

Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial
Reporting Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so
prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been restated. Absorption accounting
requires that entities account for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required
when functions transfer within the public sector. Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed separately from operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give
rise to income and expenditure entries.

1.5

Pooled Budgets
Where the clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health
Service Act 2006 the clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from
the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.
If the clinical commissioning group is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the clinical commissioning group recognises:
· The assets the clinical commissioning group controls;
· The liabilities the clinical commissioning group incurs;
· The expenses the clinical commissioning group incurs; and,
· The clinical commissioning group’s share of the income from the pooled budget activities.
If the clinical commissioning group is involved in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement, in addition to the above, the clinical
commissioning group recognises:
· The clinical commissioning group’s share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to the nature of the assets);
· The clinical commissioning group’s share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and,
· The clinical commissioning group’s share of the expenses jointly incurred.

1.6

Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

1.6.1

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the
process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
- NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group applies financial adjustments for breaches of contractual schedules to all providers
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the NHS Standard Contract. This includes for example breaches of the NHS
constitution; breaches of the national quality schedule and breaches of the local quality schedule. One provider, Warrington and
Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, informed NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group at the Contract Review meeting on
18th March 2015 that it would be, under General Conditions 8.2 and 8.3, disputing the validity of the financial adjustments.
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1.6.2

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of applying the clinical commissioning group’s
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
- Primary Care practice prescribing information is received by the clinical commissioning group approximately 6 weeks following the
end of each reporting period. Management have estimated the year-end prescribing expenditure based on the forecast provided by
the Prescription Pricing Division of the NHS Business Services Authority. This forecast is based on 10 months actual prescribing data.
Analysis of previous year's data would suggest that there is no reason for this forecast to be materially different to actual year-end
prescribing results.
- NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has made provision against the schedule of financial adjustments for breaches of
contractual schedules by Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. This provision was calculated by the management
team assessing the areas where a financial adjustment has been applied and evaluating, in accordance with legal advice, whether
any dispute resolution process would be held in favour of Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.
- NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has made a provision for potential costs of continuing healthcare for individuals
where assessment for eligibility remains outstanding as at 31st March 2015.

1.7

Revenue
Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair
value of the consideration receivable.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.

1.8

Employee Benefits

1.8.1

Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees,
including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent
that employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

1.8.2

Retirement Benefit Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined
benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State,
in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the
underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost
to the clinical commissioning group of participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the
accounting period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount
of the liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the
retirement, regardless of the method of payment.

1.9

Other Expenses
Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured
at the fair value of the consideration payable.
Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive
obligation, which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.10

Property, Plant & Equipment

1.10.1

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:
· It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;
· It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the clinical commissioning group;
· It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;
· The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,
· The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,
· Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets
are functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates
and are under single managerial control; or,
· Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or
collective cost.
Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly different asset lives, the components
are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their own useful economic lives.
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1.10.2

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing
the asset and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. All assets are measured subsequently at fair value.
Land and buildings used for the clinical commissioning group’s services or for administrative purposes are stated in the statement of
financial position at their re-valued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any impairment.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different from those that would
be determined at the end of the reporting period. Fair values are determined as follows:
· Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use; and,
· Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost.
HM Treasury has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent assets and,
where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.
Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets
held at fair value. Assets are re-valued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use.
Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.
An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when it reverses an impairment for the same asset
previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged
to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment
losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the
revaluation reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

1.10.3

Subsequent Expenditure
Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where
subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of
the item replaced is written-out and charged to operating expenses.

1.11

Intangible Assets

1.11.1

Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the
clinical commissioning group’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only:
· When it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the clinical commissioning
group;
· Where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably; and,
· Where the cost is at least £5,000.
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, for
example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral
to the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not
capitalised but is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets are recognised
if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:
·
·
·
·
·
·

1.11.2

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use;
The intention to complete the intangible asset and use it;
The ability to sell or use the intangible asset;
How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential;
The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and,
The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

Measurement
The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the criteria above are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in
the period in which it is incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, where no active market
exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value.
Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and
technological advances.
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1.12

Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments
Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.
Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and
intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of
economic benefits or service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the clinical
commissioning group expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the clinical
commissioning group and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are
reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The clinical commissioning group begin to charge depreciation and amortisation the
month following acquisition.
At each reporting period end, the clinical commissioning group checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or
intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated to determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment annually.
A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged
to the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment
losses that arise from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount
that would have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to
expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

1.13

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

1.13.1

The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised
initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they
are operating or finance leases.

1.13.2

The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the clinical commissioning group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the clinical commissioning group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

1.14

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash
equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that
form an integral part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.

1.15

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount
rate as follows:
· Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 1.50%
· Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.05%
· Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Plus 2.20%
· All employee early departures: 1.30%
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can
be measured reliably.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan
or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct
expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with on-going activities of the entity.
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1.16

Clinical Negligence Costs
The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual
contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to
expenditure. Although the NHS Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability
remains with the clinical commissioning group.

1.17

Non-clinical Risk Pooling
The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are
risk pooling schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in
return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in
respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.18

Continuing healthcare risk pooling
In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme has been introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31
March 2013. Under the scheme the clinical commissioning group contributes annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the
claims.

1.19

Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the
case of trade receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
· Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
· Held to maturity investments;
· Available for sale financial assets; and,
· Loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

1.19.1

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives
whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair
value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus or deficit for the year. The
net gain or loss incorporates any interest earned on the financial asset.

1.19.2

Held to Maturity Assets
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

1.19.3

Available For Sale Financial Assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or that do not fall within
any of the other three financial asset classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the revaluation
reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition.
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1.19.4

Loans & Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active
market. After initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest
is recognised using the effective interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset, to the initial fair value of the financial asset.
At the end of the reporting period, the clinical commissioning group assesses whether any financial assets, other than those held at
‘fair value through profit and loss’ are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and which has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The
loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through a provision for impairment of receivables.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure to the
extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

1.20

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value.

1.20.1

Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of:
· The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less cumulative amortisation; and,
· The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.

1.20.2

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts, and contracts with embedded derivatives
whose separate value cannot be ascertained, are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at
fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss
incorporates any interest payable on the financial liability.

1.20.3

Other Financial Liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for loans
from Department of Health, which are carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the
effective interest method.

1.21

Value Added Tax
Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and
input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.22

Losses & Special Payments
Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or
passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures
compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are
handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses
which would have been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with
insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.23

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted
The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2014-15, all
of which are subject to consultation:
· IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
· IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement
· IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts
· IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers
The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2014-15, were they applied in that
year.
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NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended), performance against those duties was as follows:

2014-15
Target
£000
Expenditure not to exceed income
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions

2014-15
Performance
£000

249,703
120
249,170

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions

249,602
119
249,070

Duty
Achieved?
Y/N
Y
Y
Y

2013-14
Target
£000

2013-14
Performance
£000

239,829
0
239,237

239,329
0
238,737

120

119

Y

0

0

244,054
5,116

244,767
4,303

N
Y

234,117
5,120

233,707
5,030

As demonstrated in the table above, NHS Warrington CCG utilised underspends against the 2014/15 running cost allowance to support additional programme (healthcare) expenditure. This is an
approach that is supported by NHS England and is confirmed in the ‘Everyone Counts: Planning for patients 2014/15 to 2018/19’ guidance.

3 Other Operating Revenue
2014-15
Total

2014-15
Admin

2014-15
Programme

2013-14
Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other revenue
Total other operating revenue

21
80
312
413

21
9
42
72

0
71
270
341

0
82
510
592

Admin Revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the Clinical Commissioning Group and credited to the General Fund.

4 Revenue
2014-15
Total
£000
From rendering of services
From sale of goods
Total

2014-15
Admin
£000
413
0
413

72
0
72

2014-15
Programme
£000
341
0
341

2013-14
Total
£000
592
0
592

1
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5.1.1 Employee benefits

2014-15

Total
Permanent
Employees
£000

Total
£000

Admin

Other
£000

Total
£000

Permanent
Employees
£000

Programme

Other
£000

Permanent
Employees
£000

Total
£000

Other
£000

Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Other pension costs
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Gross employee benefits expenditure

2,480
201
242
0
0
0
0
2,923

2,154
201
242
0
0
0
0
2,597

326
0
0
0
0
0
0
326

2,068
171
198
0
0
0
0
2,437

1,749
171
198
0
0
0
0
2,118

319
0
0
0
0
0
0
319

412
30
44
0
0
0
0
486

405
30
44
0
0
0
0
479

7
0
0
0
0
0
0
7

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 5.1.2)
Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs

(21)
2,902

(21)
2,576

0
326

(21)
2,416

(21)
2,097

0
319

0
486

0
479

0
7

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

0
2,902

0
2,576

0
326

0
2,416

0
2,097

0
319

0
486

0
479

0
7

5.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits
2014-15
Permanent
Employees
£000

Total
£000
Employee Benefits - Revenue
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme
Other pension costs
Other post-employment benefits
Other employment benefits
Termination benefits
Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits

(21)
0
0
0
0
0
0
(21)

(21)
0
0
0
0
0
0
(21)

Other
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has clawed back the sum of £21,202.44 from an employee who terms and conditions of employment were on a Very Senior Manager contract and who was given payment in lieu of contractual
notice but who was hired, within this period, by another NHS Organisation.
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Total
Number
Average Staff Numbers
Medical and dental
Ambulance staff
Administration and estates
Healthcare assistants and other support staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social Care Staff
Other

2014-15
Permanently
employed
Number

0.73
0
30.27
0
15
0
0
0
0
46

2013-14
Other
Number

0.73
0
27.27
0
15
0
0
0
0
43

Total
Number
0
0
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
3

0
0
31
0
9
0
0
0
2
42

5.3 Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
2014-15
Number
Total Days Lost
Total Staff Years
Average working Days Lost

337
41
8

2013-14
Number
196
39
5

NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has restated 2013/14 staff sickness absence figures above to correct an error in 2013/14 Annual Accounts.

2014-15
Number
1

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds

2013-14
Number
0

£000
Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year

35

£000
0

5.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Less than £10,000
£10,001 to £25,000
£25,001 to £50,000
£50,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £150,000
£150,001 to £200,000
Over £200,001
Total

2014-15
Other agreed departures
Number
£
0
0
0
0
1
41,438
1
51,228
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
92,666

2014-15
Total
Number

£
0
0
1
1
0
0
0
2

0
0
41,438
51,228
0
0
0
92,666

Analysis of Other Agreed Departures

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs
Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs
Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs
Contractual payments in lieu of notice
Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders
Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval*
Total

Other agreed departures
Number
£
0
0
0
0
0
0
2
92,666
0
0
0
0
2
92,666

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and in line with agreed contract of employments (AfC).
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group agreed early retirement due to medical incapacity for one member of staff during 2014/15. NHS Warrington Clinical
Commissioning Group is required to meet any costs attributable to notice period and accrued annual leave. These costs are included in the tables above. Ill-health
retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme and are therefore not included in the tables above.
The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.
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5.5 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the benefits payable under these
provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.
The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of
participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period.
In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be
determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be
four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:
5.5.1 Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an
actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current
reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme
liability as at 31 March 2015, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2014, updated to 31 March 2015 with summary global member and
accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual NHS
Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions
website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
5.5.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking into account its
recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012.
The Scheme Regulations allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and
consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate.

73

NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group - Annual Accounts 2014-15
5.5 Pension costs
5.5.3 Scheme Provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not
intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be
obtained:
• The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the last
three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership.
Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total pensionable
earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
• With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to
a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”.
• Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in
retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI)
has been used and replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI).
• Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of fulfilling
their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five
times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.
• For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount
of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.
• Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s
approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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6. Operating expenses
2014-15
Total
£000
Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members
Executive governing body members
Total gross employee benefits
Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England
Services from foundation trusts
Services from other NHS trusts
Services from other NHS bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Chair and Non Executive Members
Supplies and services – clinical
Supplies and services – general
Consultancy services
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Impairments and reversals of receivables
Inventories written down
Depreciation
Amortisation
Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets
Impairments and reversals of financial assets
·
Assets carried at amortised cost
·
Assets carried at cost
·
Available for sale financial assets
Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale
Impairments and reversals of investment properties
Audit fees
Other non statutory audit expenditure
·
Internal audit services
·
Other services
General dental services and personal dental services
Prescribing costs
Pharmaceutical services
General ophthalmic services
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS
Other professional fees excl. audit
Grants to other public bodies
Clinical negligence
Research and development (excluding staff costs)
Education and training
Change in discount rate
Provisions
CHC Risk Pool contributions
Other expenditure
Total other costs
Total operating expenses

2014-15
Admin
£000

2014-15
Programme
£000

2013-14
Total
£000

2,249
674
2,923

1,763
674
2,437

486
0
486

2,248
531
2,779

1,717
139,941
37,382
30
29,585
0
499
2,147
55
530
8
538
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
75

1,023
0
53
0
0
0
0
87
55
181
8
236
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
75

694
139,941
37,329
30
29,585
0
499
2,060
0
349
0
302
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,903
134,867
36,290
92
27,292
102
511
1,543
11
543
18
352
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
59

4
0
0
31,691
0
0
112
368
0
1
0
74
0
1,452
351
0
246,560

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
180
0
1
0
39
0
0
0
0
1,938

4
0
0
31,691
0
0
112
188
0
0
0
35
0
1,452
351
0
244,622

0
0
0
32,310
0
0
113
443
0
0
0
101
0
0
0
0
236,550

249,483

4,375

245,108

239,329

Admin expenditure relates to payments other than direct payments for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.
7.1 Better Payment Practice Code
Measure of compliance

2014-15
Number

2014-15
£000

2013-14
Number

2013-14
£000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target

4,685
4,402
93.96%

33,055
30,519
92.33%

3,359
3,007
89.52%

26,231
21,843
83.27%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target

2,343
2,244
95.77%

161,166
159,892
99.21%

1,608
1,546
96.14%

159,588
157,856
98.91%

7.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998
There were no late payments of commercial debts during the period up to 31st March 2015 (2013/14 £0).
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8. Operating Leases
8.1 As lessee
8.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense
Land
£000
Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Sub-lease payments
Total

Buildings
£000
0
0
0
0

2014-15
Total
£000

Other
£000

380
0
0
380

5
0
0
5

8.1.2 Future minimum lease payments
Land
£000
Payable:
No later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Total

Buildings
£000
0
0
0
0

385
0
0
385

2014-15
Total
£000

Other
£000
0
0
0
0

2013-14
Total
£000

6
0
0
6

178
0
0
178

2013-14
Total
£000
6
0
0
6

2
0
0
2

The clinical commissioning group occupies property owned and managed by NHS Property Services Ltd. In 2014/15 charges were based on actual
occupation including void spaces, 2013/14 comparatives were on an agreed transitional rent based on annual property cost's. This is reflected above in
Note 8.1.1.
Whilst our arrangements with Community Health Partnership's Limited and NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating
leases, rental charge for future years, including void spaces, has not yet been agreed . Consequently note 8.1.2 does not include future
minimum lease payments for the arrangements.

8.2 As lessor
8.2.1 Rental revenue
The clinical commissioning group was not party to any agreements as a lessor during the period up to the 31st March 2015 (2013/14 £0).
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9 Property, plant and equipment

2014-15

Information
technology
£000

Total
£000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014

0

0

Additions purchased
Cost/Valuation At 31 March 2015

63
63

63
63

Depreciation 1 April 2014

0

0

Charged during the year
Depreciation at 31 March 2015

0
0

0
0

Net Book Value at 31 March 2015

63

63

Purchased
Total at 31 March 2015

63
63

63
63

Owned

63

63

Total at 31 March 2015

63

63

Asset financing:

NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group purchased the above Information Technology in
March 2015. Depreciation is to be charged the month following acquisition therefore the clinical
commissioning group will start to charge depreciation April 2015 (2015/16).
Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

Information
technology
£000's

Total
£000's

At 31 March 2015

0

0

9.1 Economic lives
Minimum Life
(years)
Information technology

Maximum Life
(Years)
5

5

10 Intangible non-current assets

2014-15

Computer
Software:
Purchased
£000

Total
£000
0

0

56
56

56
56

Amortisation 1 April 2014

0

0

Charged during the year
Amortisation At 31 March 2015

0
0

0
0

Net Book Value at 31 March 2015

56

56

Purchased
Total at 31 March 2015

56
56

0
0

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014
Additions purchased
Cost / Valuation At 31 March 2015

NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group purchased the above Computer Software in March
Revaluation Reserve Balance for intangible assets
Computer
Software:
Purchased
£000's
At 31 March 2015

Total
£000's
0

0

10.1 Economic lives
Minimum Life
(years)
Computer software: purchased

Maximum Life
(Years)
0

0
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11 Trade and other receivables

NHS receivables: Revenue
NHS receivables: Capital
NHS prepayments and accrued income
Non-NHS receivables: Revenue
Non-NHS receivables: Capital
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income
Provision for the impairment of receivables
VAT

Current
2014-15
£000

Non-current
2014-15
£000

Current
2013-14
£000

Non-current
2013-14
£000

1,211
0
423
475
0
173
0
4

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,300
0
0
255
0
27
0
24

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership
arrangement prepayments and accrued income

0

0

0

0

Interest receivables
Finance lease receivables
Operating lease receivables
Other receivables
Total Trade & other receivables

0
0
0
0
2,286

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
1,606

0
0
0
0
0

Total current and non current

2,286

11.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired

1,606

2014-15
£000

By up to three months
By three to six months
By more than six months
Total

2013-14
£000
479
8
0
487

480
16
32
528

Of the £487k outstanding as at 31st March 2015, £103k has subsequently been recovered, of this £103k the receivable within the three to
six month (£8k) category has been recovered.

The clinical commissioning group did not hold any collateral against receivables outstanding at 31st March 2015 (2013/14 £0).

11.2 Provision for impairment of receivables
The clinical commissioning group has no provision for impairment of receivables. All outstanding invoiced debt as at 31st March 2015 is
expected to be settled in full.

12 Cash and cash equivalents
2014-15
£000
Balance at 1 April 2014
Net change in year
Balance at 31 March 2015

2013-14
£000

47
(28)
19

47
0
47

Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Cash with Commercial banks
Cash in hand
Current investments

19
0
0
0

47
0
0
0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position

19

47

0
0
0

0
0
0

19

47

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service
Bank overdraft: Commercial banks
Total bank overdrafts
Balance at 31 March 2015
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13 Trade and other payables

Current
2014-15
£000

Non-current
2014-15
£000

Interest payable
NHS payables: revenue
NHS payables: capital
NHS accruals and deferred income
Non-NHS payables: revenue
Non-NHS payables: capital
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income
Social security costs
VAT
Tax
Payments received on account
Other payables
Total Trade & Other Payables

0
1,564
0
991
677
119
7,344
32
0
38
0
166
10,931

Total current and non-current

10,931

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Current
2013-14
£000

Non-current
2013-14
£000

0
1,757
0
0
3,559
0
5,102
23
0
26
1
137
10,605

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

10,605

Other payables include £37,281 outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2015.

14 Provisions
Current
2014-15
£000
Pensions relating to former directors
Pensions relating to other staff
Restructuring
Redundancy
Agenda for change
Equal pay
Legal claims
Continuing care
Other
Total

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
102
1,350
1,452

Total current and non-current

1,452
Continuing
Care
£000s

Balance at 1 April 2014

Non-current
2014-15
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Current
2013-14
£000

Non-current
2013-14
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

Other
£000s

Total
£000s

0

0

0

Arising during the year
Utilised during the year
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
Change in discount rate
Transfer (to) from other public sector body
Balance at 31 March 2015

102
0
0
0
0
0
102

1,350
0
0
0
0
0
1,350

1,452
0
0
0
0
0
1,452

Expected timing of cash flows:
Within one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Balance at 31 March 2015

102
0
0
102

1,350
0
0
1,350

1,452
0
0
1,452

NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has made a provision for potential costs of continuing healthcare for individuals
where assessment for eligibility remains outstanding as at 31st March 2015.
NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group has made provision against the schedule of financial adjustments for breaches
of contractual schedules by Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. This provision was calculated by the
management team assessing the areas where a financial adjustment has been applied and evaluating, in accordance with legal
advice, whether any dispute resolution process would be held in favour of Warrington and Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust.
Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for accounting for
liabilities relating to NHS Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before establishment of the clinical
commissioning group. However, the legal liability remains with the clinical commissioning group. The total value of legacy NHS
Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on behalf of NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group
at 31 March 2015 is £201,052.11.
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15 Financial instruments
15.1 Financial risk management
Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or
changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.
Because the clinical commissioning group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced
by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed
companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest
surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks
facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.
Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within NHS Warrington
Clinical Commissioning Group's standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to
review by the clinical commissioning group and internal auditors.
15.1.1 Currency risk
The clinical commissioning group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in
the UK and sterling based. The clinical commissioning group has no overseas operations. The clinical commissioning group and therefore
has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
15.1.2 Interest rate risk

The clinical commissioning group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England.
The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate,
fixed for the life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.
15.1.3 Credit risk
Because the majority of the clinical commissioning group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, the clinical commissioning group has
low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in
the trade and other receivables note.
15.1.3 Liquidity risk
The clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted
annually by Parliament. The clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The clinical
commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.
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15 Financial instruments cont'd
15.2 Financial assets
Loans and
Receivables
2014-15
£000
Receivables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2015

Total
2014-15
£000

1,211
475
19
0
1,705
Loans and
Receivables
2013-14
£000

Receivables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2014

1,211
475
19
0
1,705

Total
2013-14
£000

1,300
255
47
0
1,602

1,300
255
47
0
1,602

15.3 Financial liabilities
Other
2014-15
£000
Payables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations
Other borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2015

2,554
8,308
0
0
0
10,862
Other
2013-14
£000

Payables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations
Other borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2014

Total
2014-15
£000

1,757
8,661
0
0
0
10,418

2,554
8,308
0
0
0
10,862
Total
2013-14
£000

1,757
8,661
0
0
0
10,418
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16 Operating segments
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) require financial performance to be analysed across key decision making segments. The clinical
commissioning group only has one segment; commissioning of healthcare services.
17 Pooled budgets
The clinical commissioning group was not party to any pooled budget arrangements during the period up to the 31st March 2015 (2013/14 £0).
18 Intra-government and other balances
Current
Receivables
2014-15
£000
Balances with:
·
Other Central Government bodies
·
Local Authorities
Balances with NHS bodies:
·
NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group
·
NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts
Total of balances with NHS bodies:
·
·

Public corporations and trading funds
Bodies external to Government

Total balances at 31 March 2015

Non-current
Receivables
2014-15
£000

0
0

25
215

0
0

821
813
1,634

0
0
0

24
2,530
2,554

0
0
0

0
633

0
0

0
8,137

0
0

2,286

0

10,931

0

Balances with:
·
Other Central Government bodies
·
Local Authorities

·
·

Public corporations and trading funds
Bodies external to Government

Total balances at 31 March 2014

Non-current
Payables
2014-15
£000

0
19

Current
Receivables
2013-14
£000

Balances with NHS bodies:
·
NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group
·
NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts
Total of balances with NHS bodies:

Current
Payables
2014-15
£000

Non-current
Receivables
2013-14
£000

Current Payables
2013-14
£000

Non-current
Payables
2013-14
£000

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

319
980
1,299

0
0
0

67
1,690
1,757

0
0
0

0
307

0
0

0
8,848

0
0

1,606

0

10,605

0

19 Related party transactions
Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:

Payments to
Related Party
£000

Receipts from
Related Party
£000
14

Amounts due
from Related
Party
£000

Dr Andrew Davies - Green-Bank Surgery

57

-

-

Dr Anita Malkhandi - 4 Seasons Medical Centre

56

-

-

-

103
72
112
109,061
22,565
15,598
4,087
3,715
7,286
13,652

-

1,556
85
16
114
330

-

Dr Dan Bunstone - Penketh Medical Centre
Dr Simon Redfearn - Birchwood Medical Centre
Dr Anthony Parkin - Westbrook Medical Centre
Department of Health - Parent Entity
Warrington & Halton Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Bridgewater Community Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
5 Boroughs Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
Royal Liverpool & Broadgreen Hospitals NHS Trust
St Helens & Knowsley Hospitals NHS Trust
North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust
Warrington Borough Council

-

Amounts owed
to Related Party
£000
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20 Events after the end of the reporting period
There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial statements of the clinical commissioning group or
consolidated group.
21 Losses and special payments
21.1 Losses
The clinical commissioning group did not incur any losses during the period up to the 31st March 2015 (2013/14 £0).
21.2 Special payments
The clinical commissioning group did not incur any special payments during the period up to the 31st March 2015 (2013/14 £0).
22 Impact of IFRS
Accounting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) had no impact on the results of the clinical commissioning group
during the period up to the 31st March 215..
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NHS WARRINGTON
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP
We have audited the financial statements of NHS Warrington Clinical Commissioning Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial
statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement of
Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and the accounting policies directed by the NHS
Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National
Health Service in England.
We have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is subject to audit,
being:


the table of salaries and allowances of senior managers and related narrative notes.
on page 32



the table of pension benefits of senior managers and related narrative notes on page
32



the pay multiples and related narrative notes on page 33

This report is made solely to the members of NHS Warrington CCG in accordance with Part
II of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 44 of
the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by the Audit
Commission in March 2014. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)'s
members and the CCG as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.
Respective responsibilities of the Accountable Officer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the
Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express
an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards also require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment
of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the CCG’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Accountable Officer; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in
the annual report which comprises the Introduction, the Members Practices Introduction, the
Strategic Report, the Members Report, The Remuneration Report, the Statement of
Accountable Officers Responsibilities and the Governance Statement, to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is
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apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge
acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent
material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
In addition, we are required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the expenditure and income reported in the financial statements have been applied to the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.
Opinion on regularity
In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reported in the financial
statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:



give a true and fair view of the financial position of NHS Warrington CCG as at 31
March 2015 and of its net operating costs for the year then ended; and
have been prepared properly in accordance with the accounting policies directed by
the NHS Commissioning Board with the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant
to the National Health Service in England.

Opinion on other matters
In our opinion:




the part of the Remuneration Report subject to audit has been prepared properly in
accordance with the requirements directed by the NHS Commissioning Board with
the consent of the Secretary of State as relevant to the National Health Service in
England; and
the information given in the annual report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:
 in our opinion the governance statement does not reflect compliance with NHS
England’s Guidance;
 we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 19 of the Audit Commission
Act 1998 because we have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the CCG,
is about to make, or has made, a decision involving unlawful expenditure, or is about
to take, or has taken, unlawful action likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or
 we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act
1998.
We have nothing to report in these respects.
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Conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
Respective responsibilities of the CCG and auditor
The CCG is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.
We are required under Section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 to satisfy ourselves that
the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission requires
us to report to you our conclusion relating to proper arrangements, having regard to relevant
criteria specified by the Audit Commission in October 2014.
We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from concluding
that the CCG has put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we
considered, whether all aspects of the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having
regard to the guidance on the specified criteria, published by the Audit Commission in
October 2014, as to whether the CCG has proper arrangements for:



securing financial resilience
challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us to
consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in
place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2015.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on
whether, in all significant respects, the CCG had put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Conclusion
On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criteria published
by the Audit Commission in October 2014, we are satisfied that, in all significant respects,
NHS Warrington CCG put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2015.
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Certificate
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of NHS Warrington CCG in
accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Code of Audit
Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

Robin Baker
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor
Royal Liver Building
Liverpool
L3 1PS
28 May 2015

87

